Office of the Project Director, Rajasthan Forestry & Biodiversity Development Project (RFBDP)

Aravalli Bhawan, Jhalana Institutional Area, Jaipur-302004, Rajasthan, India Ph.: 0141-2709101; e-mail: rfbdp.afd@qmail.com

F11(20)/PD/RFBDP/Baseline/2023-24/633

Notice Inviting Tender

Notice Inviting Limited Tender Enquiry for Conducting Baseline Survey under Rajasthan Forestry and Biodiversity Development Project.

Sealed quotations are invited from interested firms/agencies for Conducting Baseline Survey under Rajasthan Forestry and Biodiversity Development Project for the Rajasthan Forestry and Biodiversity Development Project as per the following:

- Date and time of availability of bid document in the portal (https://eproc.rajasthan.gov.in)
 29 February 2024 at 05:00 PM.
- 2. Pre-Bid Date and Time: 22nd March.2024 at 02:30 P.M.
- 3. Last Date and Time for receipt of bids in the portal: 17-04-2024 at 02:00 PM.
- 4. Name and Address of the Officer inviting the Bid: Deputy Project Director, RFBDP, Rajasthan Forestry and Biodiversity Development Project, Jaipur.
- 5. Details of subsequent addendum/corrigendum/cancellation etc. may be obtained from the website: https://eproc.rajasthan.gov.in
- Processing Fee: Rs. 2000/- (Non-refundable) in the form of Demand Draft/Banker's Cheque issued in favour of "Managing Director, RISL"- payable at Jaipur.
- 7. Bid Security Deposit of Rs.1,00000 /- in favour of DPD, RFBDP, payable at Jaipur.
- 8. Portal Registration: The bidder intending to participate in the bid is required to register in the portal using his/her active personal/official e-mail id as his/her Login id and attach his/her valid digital signature certificate (DSC) to his/her unique login id.

Note: Demand Draft (D.D.) of processing fee should submit manually in the office of the Project Director, Rajasthan Forestry and Biodiversity Development Project (RFBDP), Arawali Bhawan, Jhalana Institutional Area, Jaipur-302004, Rajasthan.

For any other queries, the bidders are asked to contact rfbdp.afd@gmail.com. This bears the approval of competent authority.

Websites for downloading Bidding Documents.
Corrigendum. Addendums.
etc.

Websites.

1 https://sppp.rajasthan.gov.in/
2 https://eproc.rajasthan.gov.in/
3 https://forest.rajasthan.gov.in/
4 https://documents.

Deputy Project Director RFBDP, Jaipur

Date: 29th February 2024

Request for Proposal

For

Selection of Consultants

[Through Quality and Cost Based Selection (QCBS) method]

Consulting Services:

Consultant/Consultants
For conducting Baseline survey
under Rajasthan Forestry and Biodiversity
Development Project





29th February, 2024

RFP No. 02 /2023-24

Loation: Jaipur, Rajasthan, India

Dated:

- 1. The Rajasthan Project on Rajasthan Forestry and Biodiversity Development Project (RFBDP) (hereinafter called "Client") has received financing from Agence Française de Développement ("AFD") toward the cost of Rajasthan Project on Forestry and Biodiversity Development. The Client intends to apply a portion of the proceeds of this financing to eligible payments under the Contract for which this Request for Proposals is issued.
- The Client now invites Proposals to provide the following consulting services (hereinafter called "Services") as: Selection of Consultants to conduct baseline study in project villages of AFD funded RFBDP project.
- 3. The Project Management Unit (PMU) of the RFBDP invites proposals from experienced and capable Consultants/ Resource Organizations (reputed agencies / institutions / firms/ societies/ companies etc.) registered in India to conduct Study on Base Line Survey of 100 Sample villages in 13 Districts under RFBDP on contractual basis. More details on the Services are provided in the Terms of Reference (Section VII).
- 4. A firm will be selected under Quality and Cost Based Selection (QCBS) method to conduct study on Base Line Survey. A firm will be selected in accordance with method and procedures described in the RFP.
- 5. The RFP includes the following documents:
 - Section I Instructions to Consultants (ITC)
 - Section II Data Sheet
 - Section III Technical Proposal Standard forms
 - Section IV Financial Proposal Standard forms
 - Section V Eligibility Criteria
 - Section VI AFD's Policy Corrupt and fraudulent practices Social and Environmental Responsibility
 - Section VII Terms of Reference (TOR)
 - Section VIII Conditions of Contract and Contract forms
- 6. Please inform us by 11th March, 2024, in writing at- Project Director, PMU, Rajasthan Forestry and Biodiversity Development Project, Aravalli Bhavan, Jhalana Institutional Area, Jaipur, Rajasthan- 302004 India; Tel: 0141-2709101; or by Email to: rfbdp.afd@gmail.com:
 - a) That you have received the Letter of Invitation; and
- 7. Details on the Proposal's submission date, time and address are provided in Sub-Clause 17.9 of the ITC.

Yours sincerely,

Deputy Project Director,
Rajasthan Forestry and Biodiversity
Development Project (RFBDP)
Aravalli Bhavan, Jhalana Institutional Area
Jaipur- 302004, Rajasthan, India
Tel: 0141-2709101

email: rfbdp.afd@gmail.com

SELECTION OF CONSULTANTS

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

RFP No.:02 /2023-24

[Reference number as per Procurement Plan:3.5C]

Selection of Consulting Services for:

Consultant/Consultants

For conducting Baseline survey

under Rajasthan Forestry and Biodiversity Development Project.

Client: Rajasthan Forest Department, Government of Rajasthan Country: *India*

Project: Rajasthan Forestry and Biodiversity Development Project

Issued on: 29.02.2024

Contents

PART I – SELECTION PROCEDURES AND REQUIREMENTS	6
Section I - Instructions to Consultants	7
Section II – Data Sheet	18
Section III – Technical Proposal – Standard forms	23
Section IV – Financial Proposal – Standard forms	34
Section V – Eligibility Criteria	36
Section VI – AFD Policy – Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices – Environmental Responsibility	
Section VII – Terms of Reference	40
PART II - CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND CONTRACT FORMS	49
Section VIII – Conditions of Contract and Contract forms	49

PART I – SELECTION PROCEDURES AND REQUIREMENTS

Section I - Instructions to Consultants

Table of Clauses

A.	Gene	ral Provisions	8
	1	Definitions	8
	2	Introduction	9
	3	Conflict of interest	9
	4	Unfair competitive advantage	10
	5	Corrupt and fraudulent practices	10
	6	Eligibility	10
В.	Prepa	aration of Proposals	10
	7	General considerations	10
	8	Cost of preparation of Proposal	10
	9	Language	10
	10	Documents comprising the Proposal	10
	11	Only one Proposal	10
	12	Proposal validity	
	13	Clarification and amendment of RFP	11
	14	Preparation of Proposals – Specific consideration	12
	15	Technical Proposal format and content	12
	16	Financial Proposal	12
C.	Subm	nission, Opening and Evaluation	13
	17	Submission, sealing and marketing of Proposals	
	18	Confidentiality	13
	19	Opening of technical Proposals	
	20	Proposals evaluation	14
	21	Evaluation of technical Proposals	
	22	Financial Proposals for QBS	14
	23	Public opening of financial Proposals (for Quality and Cost Based Selection (QCBS), Fix Budget Selection (FBS), and Least-Cost Selection (LCS) methods)	
	24	Correction of errors	
	25	Taxes	
	26	Conversion to single currency	
	27	Combined quality and cost evaluation (for QCBS, FBS, and LCS methods)	
	28	Abnormally low financial Proposal	
D.	Nego	tiations and Award	
	29	Negotiations	
	30	Conclusion of negotiations	
	31	Award of Contract	

A. General Provisions

1 Definitions

- 1.1 "Affiliate(s)" means an individual or an entity that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Consultant.
- 1.2 "Applicable law" means the laws and any other instruments having the force of law in the Client's country, or in such other country as may be specified in the Data Sheet, as they may be issued and in force from time to time.
- 1.3 "AFD" means Agence Française de Développement(AFD).
- 1.4 **"Client"** means the implementing agency that signs the Contract for the Services with the selected Consultant.
- "Consultant" means a legally-established professional consulting firm or an entity that may provide or provides the Services to the Client under the Contract.
- "Contract" means a legally binding written agreement signed between the Client and the Consultant. It includes all the attached documents listed in its Clause 1 (the General Conditions of Contract (GCC), the Special Conditions of Contract (SCC), and the Appendices).
- "Data Sheet" means an integral part of the Instructions to Consultants (ITC) Section II that is used to reflect specific country and assignment conditions to supplement, but not to over-write, the provisions of the ITC.
- 1.8 "Day" means a calendar day.
- 1.9 **"Experts"** means, collectively, Key Experts, Non-Key Experts, or any other personnel of the Consultant, Subconsultant or Joint Venture member(s).
- 1.10 "Joint Venture (JV)" means an association with or without a legal personality distinct from that of its members, of more than one Consultant where one member has the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the members of the JV, and where the members of the JV are jointly and severally liable to the Client for the performance of the Contract.
- 1.11 **"Key Expert(s)"** means an individual professional provided by the Consultant or its Subconsultant, whose skills, qualifications, knowledge and experience are critical to the performance of the Services under the Contract and whose CV is taken into account in the technical evaluation of the Consultant's Proposal.
- 1.12 **"ITC"** (this Section I of the RFP) means the Instructions to Consultants that provide the shortlisted Consultants with all information they need to prepare their Proposals.
- 1.13 **"LOI"** means the Letter of Invitation being sent by the Client to the shortlisted Consultants.
- 1.14 "Non-Key Expert(s)" means an individual professional provided by the Consultant or its Subconsultant and who is assigned to perform the Services or any part thereof under the Contract and whose CVs are not evaluated individually.
- 1.15 **"Proposal"** means the technical Proposal and the financial Proposal of the Consultant.
- 1.16 **"RFP"** means the Request for Proposals to be prepared by the Client for the selection of Consultants.
- 1.17 **"Services"** means the consulting services work to be performed by the Consultant pursuant to the Contract.

- 1.18 **"Subconsultant"** means an entity to whom the Consultant intends to subcontract any part of the Services while remaining responsible to the Client during the performance of the Contract.
- 1.19 "TORs" (this Section VII of the RFP) means the Terms of Reference that explain the objectives, scope of work, activities, and tasks to be performed, respective responsibilities of the Client and the Consultant, and expected results and deliverables of the Services.

2 Introduction 2.1

- The Client named in the **Data Sheet** intends to select a Consultant from those listed in the Letter of Invitation, in accordance with the method of selection specified in the **Data Sheet**.
- 2.2 The shortlisted Consultants are invited to submit a technical Proposal and a financial Proposal for the Services named in the **Data Sheet**. The Proposal will be the basis for negotiating and ultimately signing the Contract with the selected Consultant.
- 2.3 The Consultants should take into account the Applicable law in preparing their Proposals. They may attend a pre-Proposal conference if one is specified in the **Data Sheet**. Attending any such pre-Proposal conference is optional and is at the Consultants' expense.
- 2.4 The Client will timely provide, at no cost to the Consultants, the inputs, relevant project data, and reports required for the preparation of the Consultant's Proposal as specified in the **Data Sheet**.

3 Conflict of interest

- 3.1 The Consultant is required to provide professional, objective, and impartial advice, at all times holding the Client's interests paramount, strictly avoiding conflicts with other assignments or its own corporate interests, and acting without any consideration for future work.
- 3.2 The Consultant has an obligation to disclose to the Client any situation of actual or potential conflict of interest that impacts its capacity to serve the best interest of its Client. Failure to disclose such situations may lead to the rejection of the Consultant's Proposal or the termination of its Contract.
- 3.3 Without limitation on the generality of the foregoing, and unless stated otherwise in the Data Sheet, the Consultant shall not be hired under the circumstances set forth below:

3.3.1 Conflicting activities

3.3.1.1 Conflict between consulting activities and procurement of goods, works or non-consulting services: a firm that has been engaged by the Client to provide goods, works, or non-consulting services for a project, or any of its Affiliates, shall be disqualified from providing consulting services resulting from or directly related to those goods, works, or non-consulting services. Conversely, a firm hired to provide consulting services for the preparation or implementation of a project, or any of its Affiliates, shall be disqualified from subsequently providing goods or works or non-consulting services resulting from or directly related to the consulting services for such preparation or implementation.

3.3.2 Conflicting assignments

3.3.2.1 Conflict among consulting assignments: a Consultant (including its Experts and Subconsultants) or any of its Affiliates shall not be hired for any assignment that, by its nature, may be in conflict with another assignment of the Consultant for the same or for another Client.

3.3.3 Conflicting relationships

3.3.3.1 Relationship with the Client's staff: a Consultant (including its Experts and Subconsultants) that has a close business or family relationship with a professional staff of the Client who are directly or

indirectly involved in any part of (i) the preparation of the Terms of Reference for the Services, (ii) the selection process for the Contract, or (iii) the supervision of the Contract, may not be awarded a Contract, unless the conflict stemming from this relationship has been resolved in a manner acceptable to AFD throughout the selection process and the execution of the Contract.

4 Unfair competitive advantage

4.1 Fairness and transparency in the selection process require that the Consultants or their Affiliates competing for a specific assignment do not derive a competitive advantage from having provided consulting services related to the assignment in question. To that end, the Client shall indicate in the **Data Sheet** and make available to all shortlisted Consultants together with this RFP all information that would in that respect give such Consultant any unfair competitive advantage over other competing Consultants.

5 Corrupt and 5.1 fraudulent practices

AFD requires compliance with its policy in regard to corrupt and fraudulent practices as set forth in Section VI.

5.2 In further pursuance of this policy, Consultant shall permit and shall cause its Experts, Subconsultants, subcontractors, or suppliers to permit AFD to inspect all accounts, records, and other documents relating to the submission of the Proposal and Contract performance (in case of an award), and to have them audited by auditors appointed by AFD.

6 Eligibility

6.1 AFD financing may benefit to Consultants (firms, including Joint Ventures and their individual members) from all countries to offer consulting services for AFD-financed projects subject to compliance with the eligibility criteria specified in Section V.

- 6.2 Furthermore, it is the Consultant's responsibility to ensure that its Experts, Joint Venture members, Subconsultants, agents (declared or not), subcontractors, service providers, suppliers and/or their employees meet the eliqibility requirements as established by AFD in the Section V.
- 6.3 Government officials and civil servants of the Client's country are not eligible to be included as Experts in the Consultant's Proposal unless such engagement does not conflict with the Applicable law, and they (i) are on leave of absence without pay, or have resigned or retired; (ii) are not being hired by the same agency they were working for before going on leave of absence without pay, resigning, or retiring; and (iii) their hiring would not create a conflict of interest.

B. Preparation of Proposals

7 General considerations

7.1 In preparing the Proposal, the Consultant is expected to examine the RFP in detail. Material deficiencies in providing the information requested in the RFP may result in rejection of the Proposal.

8 Cost of preparation of Proposal

8.1 The Consultant shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its Proposal, and the Client shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the selection process.

9 Language

9.1 The Proposal, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Proposal exchanged between the Consultant and the Client shall be written in the language(s) specified in the **Data Sheet**.

10 Documents comprising the Proposal

10.1 The Proposal shall comprise the documents and forms listed in the **Data Sheet**.

10.2 The Consultant shall furnish information on commissions, gratuities, and fees, if any, paid or to be paid to agents or any other party relating to this Proposal and, if awarded, Contract execution.

11 Only one Proposal

11.1 The Consultant shall submit only one Proposal, either in its own name or as a member of a Joint Venture. If a Consultant (including any Joint Venture

member) submits or participates in more than one Proposal, all such Proposals shall be disqualified and rejected. This does not, however, unless otherwise stated in the **Data Sheet**, preclude a Subconsultant, or the Consultant's staff from participating as Key Experts and Non-Key Experts in more than one Proposal.

12 Proposal validity

- 12.1 The **Data Sheet** indicates the period during which the Consultant's Proposal must remain valid after the Proposal submission deadline.
- 12.2 During this period, the Consultant shall maintain its original Proposal without any change, including the availability of the Key Experts, the proposed rates and the total price.
- 12.3 If it is established that any Key Expert nominated in the Consultant's Proposal was not available at the time of Proposal submission or was included in the Proposal without his/her confirmation, such Proposal shall be disqualified and rejected for further evaluation.

12.4 Extension of validity period

- 12.4.1 The Client will make its best effort to complete the negotiations within the Proposal's validity period. However, should the need arise, the Client may request, in writing, all Consultants who submitted Proposals prior to the submission deadline to extend the Proposals' validity.
- 12.4.2 If the Consultant agrees to extend the validity of its Proposal, it shall be done without any change in the original Proposal and with the confirmation of the availability of the Key Experts.
- 12.4.3 The Consultant has the right to refuse to extend the validity of its Proposal in which case such Proposal will not be further evaluated.

12.5 Substitution of Key Experts in case of extension of validity period

- 12.5.1 If any of the Key Experts become unavailable for the extended validity period, the Consultant shall provide a written adequate justification and evidence satisfactory to the Client together with the substitution request. In such case, a replacement Key Expert shall have equal or better qualifications and experience than those of the originally proposed Key Expert. The technical evaluation score, however, will remain to be based on the evaluation of the CV of the original Key Expert.
- 12.5.2 If the Consultant fails to provide a replacement Key Expert with equal or better qualifications, or if the provided reasons for the replacement or justification are unacceptable to the Client, such Proposal will be rejected.

12.6 Subcontracting

12.6.1 Lead Consultant shall not subcontract the whole of the Services.

13 Clarification 13.1 and amendment of RFP

- The Consultant may request a clarification of any part of the RFP during the period indicated in the **Data Sheet** before the Proposals' submission deadline. Any request for clarification must be sent in writing, or by standard electronic means, to the Client's address indicated in the **Data Sheet**. The Client will respond in writing, or by standard electronic means, and will send written copies of the response (including an explanation of the query but without identifying its source) to all shortlisted Consultants. Should the Client deem it necessary to amend the RFP as a result of a clarification, it shall do so following the procedure described below:
 - 13.1.1 At any time before the Proposal submission deadline, the Client may amend the RFP by issuing an amendment in writing or by standard electronic means. The amendment shall be sent to all

- shortlisted Consultants and will be binding on them. The shortlisted Consultants shall acknowledge receipt of all amendments in writing.
- 13.1.2 If the amendment is substantial, the Client shall extend the Proposal submission deadline to give the shortlisted Consultants reasonable time to take an amendment into account in their Proposals.
- 13.2 The Consultant may submit a modified Proposal or a modification to any part of it at any time prior to the Proposal submission deadline. No modifications to the technical or financial Proposal shall be accepted after the deadline.

14 Preparation of Proposals – Specific consideratio n

14.1 While preparing the Proposal, the Consultant must give particular attention to the following:

- 14.1.1 If a shortlisted Consultant considers that it may enhance its expertise for the Services by associating with other consultants in the form of a Joint Venture, it may do so with either (i) non-shortlisted Consultant(s), or (ii) shortlisted Consultants if permitted in the **Data Sheet**. Association with a non-shortlisted Consultant shall be subject to approval of the Client. When associating with non-shortlisted firms in the form of a Joint Venture, the shortlisted Consultant shall be a lead member. If shortlisted Consultants associate with each other, any of them can be a lead member.
- 14.1.2 The Client may indicate in the **Data Sheet** the estimated Key Experts' time input (expressed in person-month) or the Client's estimated total cost of the Services, but not both. This estimate is indicative and the Proposal shall be based on the Consultant's own estimates for the same.
- 14.1.3 If stated in the **Data Sheet**, the Consultant shall include in its Proposal at least the same time input (in the same unit as indicated in the **Data Sheet**) of Key Experts, failing which the financial Proposal will be rejected.
- 14.1.4 For assignments under the Fixed-Budget selection method, the estimated Key Experts' time input is not disclosed. Total available budget, with an indication whether it is inclusive or exclusive of taxes, is given in the **Data Sheet**, and the financial Proposal shall not exceed this budget.

15 Technical Proposal format and content

- 15.1 The technical Proposal shall not include any financial information. A technical Proposal containing material financial information shall be declared non-responsive.
 - 15.1.1 Consultant shall not propose alternative Key Experts. Only one CV shall be submitted for each Key Expert position. Failure to comply with this requirement will make the Proposal non-responsive.
 - 15.1.2 Variations are not allowed.
- 15.2 The technical Proposal shall be prepared using the standard forms provided in Section III of the RFP.

16 Financial Proposal

- 16.1 The financial Proposal shall be for the duration of the contract and shall be prepared using the standard forms provided in Section IV of the RFP. It shall list all costs associated with the Services, including (a) remuneration of Key Experts and Non-Key Experts, (b) other expenses indicated in the **Data Sheet**.
- 16.2 Price adjustment

For assignments with a duration exceeding 18 months, a price adjustment provision of remuneration rates applies if so stated in the **Data Sheet**.

16.3 **Taxes**

The financial Proposal should clearly estimate, as a separate amount, the taxes, duties, fees, levies and other charges imposed in the Client's country under the Applicable law, on the Consultants, the Subconsultants, and their Experts (other than nationals or permanent residents of the Client's country), as stated in the **Data Sheet**. The Consultant and its Subconsultants and Experts are responsible for meeting all tax liabilities arising out of the Contract unless stated otherwise in the **Data Sheet**. Information on taxes in the Client's country is provided in the **Data Sheet**.

16.4 Currency of Proposal

The Consultant may express the price for its Services in the currency or currencies as stated in the **Data Sheet**. If indicated in the **Data Sheet**, the portion of the price representing local cost shall be stated in the local currency.

16.5 Currency of payment

Payment under the Contract shall be made in the currency or currencies in which the payment is requested in the Proposal.

C. Submission, Opening and Evaluation

17 Submission, 17.1 sealing and marketing of Proposals

- 7.1 The Consultant shall submit a signed and complete Proposal comprising the documents and forms in accordance with Clause 10 (Documents comprising Proposal). The submission can be done by mail or by hand. If authorized in the **Data Sheet**, the Consultant may choose to submit its Proposals electronically.
- 17.2 An authorized representative of the Consultant shall sign the original submission letters in the required format for both the technical Proposal and the financial Proposal and shall initial all pages of both. The authorization shall be in the form of a written power of attorney attached to the technical Proposal.
- 17.2.1 A Proposal submitted by a Joint Venture shall be signed by all members so as to be legally binding on all members, or by an authorized representative who has a written power of attorney signed by each member's authorized representative.
- 17.3 Any modifications, revisions, interlineations, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are signed or initialed by the person signing the Proposal.
- 17.4 The Proposal or its modifications must be sent to the address indicated in the **Data Sheet** and received by the Client no later than the deadline indicated in the **Data Sheet**, or any extension to this deadline. Any Proposal or its modification received by the Client after the deadline shall be declared late and rejected, and promptly returned unopened.

18 Confidential 18.1 ity

- 8.1 From the time the Proposals are opened to the time the Contract is awarded, the Consultant should not contact the Client on any matter related to its technical and/or financial Proposal. Information relating to the evaluation of Proposals and award recommendations shall not be disclosed to the Consultants who submitted the Proposals or to any other party not officially concerned with the process, until the publication of the Contract award information.
- 18.2 Any attempt by shortlisted Consultants or anyone on behalf of the Consultant to influence improperly the Client in the evaluation of the Proposals or Contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its Proposal.
- 18.3 Notwithstanding the above provisions, from the time of the Proposals' opening to the time of Contract award publication, if a Consultant wishes to

contact the Client on any matter related to the selection process, it should do so only in writing.

19 Opening of technical Proposals

- 19.1 The Client's evaluation committee shall conduct the opening of the technical Proposals in the presence of the shortlisted Consultants' authorized representatives who choose to attend (in person, or online if this option is offered in the **Data Sheet**). The opening date, time and address are stated in the **Data Sheet**.
- 19.2 At the opening of the technical Proposals the following shall be read out: (i) the name of the Consultant or, in case of a Joint Venture, the name of the Joint Venture, the name of the lead member and the names of all members; (ii) any modifications to the Proposal submitted prior to Proposal submission deadline; and (iii) any other information deemed appropriate or as indicated in the **Data Sheet**.

20 Proposals evaluation

- 20.1 Subject to provision of Sub-Clause 15.1 of the ITC, the evaluators of the technical Proposals shall have no access to the financial Proposals until the technical evaluation is concluded.
- 20.2 The Consultant is not permitted to alter or modify its Proposal in any way after the Proposal submission deadline except as permitted under Sub-Clause 12.7 of this ITC. While evaluating the Proposals, the Client will conduct the evaluation solely on the basis of the submitted technical and financial Proposals.

21 Evaluation of technical Proposals

1.1 The Client's evaluation committee shall evaluate the technical Proposals on the basis of their responsiveness to the Terms of Reference and the RFP, applying the evaluation criteria, sub-criteria, and point system specified in the **Data Sheet**. Each responsive Proposal will be given a technical score. A Proposal shall be rejected at this stage if it does not respond to important aspects of the RFP or if it fails to achieve the minimum technical score indicated in the **Data Sheet**.

22 Financial Proposals for QBS

- 22.1 Following the ranking of the technical Proposals, when the selection is based on quality only (QBS), the top-ranked Consultant is invited to negotiate the Contract. Only the financial Proposal of the technically top-ranked Consultant is opened by the Client's evaluation committee. All other financial Proposals are returned unopened after the Contract negotiations are successfully concluded and the Contract is signed.
- 23 Public opening of financial **Proposals** (for Quality and Cost **Based** Selection (QCBS), Fixed **Budget** Selection (FBS), and Least-Cost Selection (LCS) methods)
- 23.1 After the technical evaluation is completed, the Client shall notify those Consultants whose Proposals were considered non-responsive to the RFP and TOR or did not meet the minimum qualifying technical score (and shall provide information relating to the Consultant's overall technical score) that their financial Proposals will be returned unopened after completing the selection process and Contract signing. The Client shall simultaneously notify in writing those Consultants that have achieved the minimum overall technical score and inform them of the date, time and location for the opening of the financial Proposals. The opening date should allow the Consultants sufficient time to make arrangements for attending the opening. The Consultant's attendance at the opening of the financial Proposals (in person, or online if such option is indicated in the **Data Sheet**) is optional and is at the Consultant's choice.
- 23.2 The financial Proposals shall be opened by the Client's evaluation committee in the presence of the representatives of those Consultants whose Proposals have passed the minimum technical score. At the opening, the names of the Consultants, the overall technical scores, and the total prices shall be read aloud and recorded. Copies of the record shall be sent to all Consultants who submitted Proposals.

24 Correction of errors

24.1 Activities and items described in the technical Proposal but not priced in the financial Proposal, shall be assumed to be included in the prices of other activities or items, and no corrections will be made to the financial Proposal.

24.2 <u>Time-based Contracts</u>

In the case of a time-based Contract, the Client's evaluation committee will (a) correct any computational or arithmetical errors, and (b) adjust the prices if they fail to reflect all inputs included for the respective activities or items in the technical Proposal. In case of discrepancy between (i) a partial amount (sub-total) and the total amount, or (ii) between the amount derived by multiplication of unit price with quantity and the total price, or (iii) between words and figures, the former will prevail. In case of discrepancy between the technical and financial Proposals in indicating quantities of input, the technical Proposal prevails and the Client's evaluation committee shall correct the quantification indicated in the financial Proposal so as to make it consistent with the one indicated in the technical Proposal, apply the relevant unit price included in the financial Proposal to the corrected quantity, and correct the total Proposal cost.

24.3 Lump-sum Contracts

In the case of a lump-sum Contract, the Consultant is deemed to have included all inputs that are necessary to perform the Services in the financial Proposal, so neither arithmetical corrections nor price adjustments shall be made. The total price, net of taxes understood as per Clause ITC 25 below, specified in the financial Proposal (form FIN-1) shall be considered as the offered price.

25 Taxes

25.1 The Client's evaluation of the Consultant's financial Proposal shall exclude taxes and duties in the Client's country in accordance with the instructions in the **Data Sheet**.

26 Conversion to single currency

26.1 For the evaluation purposes, prices shall be converted to a single currency using the selling rates of exchange, source and date indicated in the **Data Sheet**.

27 Combined quality and cost evaluation (for QCBS, FBS, and LCS methods)

27.1 In the case of quality and cost based selection (QCBS), the total score is calculated by weighting the technical and financial scores and adding them as per the formula and instructions in the **Data Sheet**. The Consultant achieving the highest combined technical and financial score will be invited for negotiations.

27.2 In the case of fixed budget selection (FBS), those Proposals that exceed the budget indicated in Sub-Clause 14.1.4 of the Data Sheet shall be rejected. The Client will select the Consultant that submitted the highest-ranked technical Proposal, and invite such Consultant to negotiate the Contract.

27.3 In the case of least-cost selection (LCS), the Client will select the Consultant with the lowest evaluated total price among those consultants that achieved the minimum technical score, and invite such Consultant to negotiate the Contract.

28 Abnormally low financial Proposal

If the financial Proposal is twenty per cent (20%) or more, lower than the Client's estimate, and unless the Client provides justification that the estimate is inaccurate, the Client shall require the Consultants to produce detailed price analyses for any or all items of the financial Proposal, to demonstrate the internal consistency of those prices and priced quantities with the methodology, resources and schedule proposed, as well as the Terms of Reference (TORs). Notwithstanding provisions of Sub-Clause ITC 24.1 which shall not apply, if inconsistencies are evidenced, the financial Proposal shall be declared non-compliant and rejected.

D. Negotiations and Award

29 **Negotiation**

- 29.1 The negotiations will be held at the date and address indicated in the **Data Sheet** with the Consultant's representative(s) who must have written power of attorney to negotiate and sign a Contract on behalf of the Consultant.
- 29.2 The Client shall prepare minutes of negotiations that are signed by the Client and the Consultant's authorized representative.

29.3 Availability of Key Experts

- 29.3.1 The invited Consultant shall confirm the availability of all Key Experts included in the Proposal as a pre-requisite to the negotiations, or, if applicable, a replacement in accordance with Clause 12 of the ITC. Failure to confirm the Key Experts' availability may result in the rejection of the Consultant's Proposal and the Client proceeding to negotiate the Contract with the next-ranked Consultant.
- 29.3.2 Notwithstanding the above, the substitution of Key Experts at the negotiations may be considered if due solely to circumstances outside the reasonable control of and not foreseeable by the Consultant, including but not limited to death or medical incapacity. In such case, the Consultant shall offer a substitute Key Expert within the period of time specified in the letter of invitation to negotiate the Contract, who shall have equivalent or better qualifications and experience than the original Key Expert.

29.4 Technical negotiations

29.4.1 The negotiations include discussions about the Terms of Reference (TORs), the proposed methodology, the Client's inputs, the special conditions of the Contract, and finalizing the "Description of Services" part of the Contract. These discussions shall not substantially alter the original scope of services under the TORs or the terms of the Contract and shall not modify the ranking of the Proposals.

29.5 Financial negotiations

- 29.5.1 The negotiations include the clarification of the Consultant's tax liability in the Client's country and how it should be reflected in the Contract.
- 29.5.2 If the selection method included cost as a factor in the evaluation, the total price stated in the financial Proposal for a lump-sum Contract shall not be negotiated.
- 29.5.3 In the case of a time-based Contract, unit rates negotiations shall not take place, except when the offered Key Experts and Non-Key Experts' remuneration rates are much higher than the typically charged rates by Consultants in similar contracts. In such case, the Client may ask for clarifications and, if the fees are very high, ask to change the rates.

30 Conclusion ofnegotiatio

- 30.1 The negotiations are concluded with a review of the finalized draft Contract, which then shall be initialed by the Client and the Consultant's authorized representative.
- 30.2 If the negotiations fail, the Client shall inform the Consultant in writing of all pending issues and disagreements and provide a final opportunity to the Consultant to respond. If disagreement persists, the Client shall terminate the negotiations informing the Consultant of the reasons for doing so. The Client will invite the next-ranked Consultant to negotiate a Contract. Once the Client commences negotiations with the next-ranked Consultant, the Client shall not reopen the earlier negotiations.

30.3 The Client reserves the right to annul the RFP process and reject all Proposals at any time prior to Contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to Consultants.

31 Award of Contract

- 31.1 After completing the negotiations the Client shall sign the Contract; if applicable, publish the award information; and promptly notify the other shortlisted Consultants.
- The Consultant is expected to commence the Services on the date and at the location specified in the **Data Sheet**.

Section II- Data Sheet

A. General				
ITC 1.2	C 1.2 Applicable law: <i>India</i>			
	2.1 Name of the Client: Rajasthan Forest Department, Government of Rajasthan			
Method of selection: Quality and Cost Based Selection (QCBS)				
	Type of Contract: Time Based Contract			
ITC 2.2				
ITC 2.3	A pre-Proposal conference will be held:			
	Yes□√or No □			
	Date of pre-Proposal conference: 22 th March 2024			
	Time: 2.30 PM			
Address: Office of the Project Director, Project Management Unit, Rajasthan Fore Biodiversity Development Project (RFBDP), Aravalli Bhawan, Jhalana Institution Jaipur-302004, (Rajasthan) India.				
Telephone: +91-141-2709101/5199654				
Email: rfbdp.afd@gmail.com				
	Contact person/conference coordinator: Project Director, RFBDP			
IIC 2.4	The Client will provide the following inputs, project data, reports, etc. to facilitate the preparation of the Proposals: Rajasthan Forest Department will facilitate provision of available information and relevant project related documentation to the Consultant, if required; and will also facilitate active engagement of the line departments at all levels of administration and other relevant stakeholders;			
ITC 3.3	The following additional circumstances shall be considered as a conflict of interest: Any consultants/experts involved in the upstream activity/preparation of the project.			
	The following additional circumstances shall not be considered as a conflict of interest: Applicable.			
ITC 4.1	TC 4.1 Not Applicable.			
	B. Preparation of Proposals			
ITC 9.1	Proposals shall be submitted in English language . All correspondence exchanges and documents shall be in English language .			
ITC 10.1	The Proposal shall comprise the following:			
	Technical Proposal:			
	 Technical Proposal submission form (TECH-1) Power of Attorney to sign the Proposal Statement of Integrity (signed) Description of methodology, work plan and team composition (TECH-2, TECH-3, TECH-4, TECH-5 and Tech -6 and are provided as indicative format) Security methodology that meets the requirements of the terms of reference - security (only in the case of Services in areas labelled as orange or red by the French Ministry of Europe and Foreign Affairs¹) AND			

¹ Or any other French Ministry responsible for the ranking of foreign countries' security conditions, if applicable.

	Financial Proposal:			
	(1) Financial Proposal submission form (FIN-1)			
	(2) Summary of costs (FIN-2) to be filled in BOQ Only			
ITC 11.1	Participation of the same JV partner/ Subconsultants, Key Experts and Non-Key Experts in more than one Proposal is permissible : No.			
ITC 12.1	Proposals must remain valid for 120 calendar days after the proposal submission deadline i.e., until: 20th August, 2024.			
ITC 13.1	Clarifications may be requested no later than 25 calendar days prior the proposal submission deadline i.e., until: 22 th March 2024.			
	The contact information for requesting clarifications is: Office of the Project Director, Project Management Unit, Rajasthan Forestry and Biodiversity Development Project (RFBDP), Aravalli Bhawan, Jhalana Institutional Area, Jaipur-302004, (Rajasthan) India.			
	Telephone: +91-141-2709101/5199654, Email: rfbdp.afd@gmail.com			
ITC 14.1.1	Shortlisted Consultants may associate with			
	(a) non-shortlisted consultant(s): No			
	Or			
	(b) other shortlisted Consultants: No			
ITC 14.1.2 The total estimated time input of the Consultants would be for a period 4 months				
ITC 16.1	1 (1) No reimbursable expenses would be paid by the client in this assignment			
ITC 16.2	A price adjustment provision applies to remuneration rates: No			
ITC 16.3	The Consultant and its Sub-consultants and Experts shall be responsible for meeting all tax liabilities arising out of the Contract as per the Indian laws.			
	The amounts payable by the Client to the Consultant under the contract shall be subject to local taxation (e.g. Goods & Services Tax) and deductions at source, however, shall be made as applicable.			
	Information on the consultant's tax obligation in India may be found on Ministry of Finance, Government of India website. The Consultant shall take advice from their tax consultant and shall suitability provide for indirect tax liability/ GST for this assignment.			
ITC 16.4	The Financial Proposal shall be stated in local currency: In Indian Rupee only.			
	C. Submission, Opening and Evaluation			
ITC 17.1	The Bidders shall have to submit their Proposals Online on https://eproc.rajasthan.gov.in			
ITC 17.4	The Consultant must submit online:			
	(a) Technical Proposal			
	(b) Financial Proposal			
ITC 17.7	The Proposals must be submitted no later than:			
and 17.9	Date: 17 th April 2024			
	Time: 2.00 PM.			
	The Proposal submission address is: https://eproc.rajasthan.gov.in			

ITC 19.1	An online option of the opening of the Technical Proposals is offered: Yes	
	The opening shall take place at: "same as the Proposal submission address"	
	Date: 17 th April 2024; Time: 16.30 Hrs.	

ITC 19.2 Any technical Proposal which does not have a signed submission form or is not accompanied with a written power of attorney, according to Sub-Clause 17.2 of the ITC, will not be considered.

ITC 21.1 Criteria, sub-criteria and point system for the evaluation of the technical Proposals:

Criteria	Points
Adequacy and quality of the proposed methodology, and work plan in responding to the Terms of Reference (TORs) (N1)	20
 2. Key Professional staff qualifications and competence for the assignment (N2): I. Team Leader (1x 13 Marks) III. Forestry and Environment Expert (1x 8 Marks) IIII. Sociology Expert (1x 8 Marks) IV. Surveyor – Four (4x4 Marks) 	45
3. Specific experience of the Consultant (as a firm) relevant to the Assignment (N3)	
Total	100

Evaluation of Criterion N 1:

The number of points to be assigned for this criterion shall be determined considering the following five sub-criteria and relevant percentage weights:

- (i) The methodology is clear and complete: all services, organization described, resources mobilized, list of activities, risks and assumptions and feasibility study
- (ii) The methodology is relevant: it brings an added value to the TORs and contains 15% innovations
- (iii) The methodology clearly details the approach for monitoring of project activities. 25%
- (iv) The work plan is detailed, realistic and in line with the TORs and proposed 20% methodology.
- (v) The number of key professionals and the expected number of working days for 15% each professional are adequate to satisfactorily perform each activity

Total 100%

100%

<u>Note:</u> Consultants may be asked to make a presentation via offline/video conference to explain their methodology, workplan, key experts profile, and their approach for this project.

Evaluation of Criterion N2:

Total Weight

The number of points to be assigned to each Key Expert mentioned above shall be determined considering the following sub-criteria and relevant percentage weights:

(i)	General qualifications	20%
(ii)	Adeqacy for the Services (relevant experience in the sector/similar services)	70%
(iii)	Relevant experience in the region (working level fluency in local language(s)/knowledge of local culture or administrative system, government organization, etc.)	10%

Evaluation of criterion No 3:

The number of points to be assigned for this criterion shall be determined considering the following sub-criteria and relevant percentage weights*:

Experience in projects for Baseline / Midterm/ End Evaluation / Social Impact studies/ Third Party Evaluation undertaken in the last 10 years in India with contract value more than Rs. 15 lacs.	12 points (1 point per project)
Out of these, at least one project (Total Project out lay 500 crore) shall be of similar size and nature in North-Western region of India*	5 points
2. Experience of Baseline / Midterm / Evaluation studies for Externally Aided Projects in the field of Forestry/Wildlife/ Agriculture/ Livelihood/ Community Mobilization/ Institutional Building/Microfinance & Linkages aspect in India in the last 10 years with contract value more than Rs. 15 lacs.	10 points (5 point per project)
3. Number of completed/ ongoing projects in Rajasthan in the last 5 years with minimum contract value of Rs. Rs. 20 lacs.	8 points (4 point per project)

^{*}The bidder should ensure that all projects listed for points number 1 and 2 above should be unique projects and should not be repeated. Copy of work order / contract documents should be provided in support to their experience.

The minimum technical score (St) required to pass is 70 on a scale of 1 to 100.

ITC 23.1 An online option of the opening of the Financial Proposals is offered: Yes

The evaluation will be carried out on the basis of the Consultant's financial Proposal excluding all taxes, duties and fees identified in Sub-Clauses 43.1 and 43.2 of the Special Conditions of Contract. During negotiations of the Contract, the calculation of applicable taxes, duties and fees will be examined and agreed upon.

Applicable taxes, duties and feesshall be added, if needed, to the Contract Price on a separate line with a reference to the Sub-Clauses 43.1 and 43.2 of the Special Conditions of Contract for payment modalities.

ITC 26.1

- (i) Bid Security as per the RTPP Act & Rules (2% of contract value) INR 1.0 Lacs.
- (ii) Prices shall be quoted in Indian Rupees only, Estimated cost of assignment is Rs 50.0 lacs including all taxes.

TC 27.1 The lowest evaluated financial Proposal (Fm) is given the maximum financial score (Sf) of 100.

The formula for determining the financial scores (Sf) of all other Proposals is calculated as following:

Sf = 100 x Fm/F, in which "Sf" is the financial score, "Fm" is the lowest price, and "F" the price of the Proposal under consideration.

The weights given to the technical (T) and financial (F) Proposals are:

T = 80

and

F = 20

Proposals are ranked according to their combined technical (St) and financial (Sf) scores using the weights (T the weight given to the technical Proposal; F =the weight given to the financial Proposal; F =1) as following: F =1 as following: F =2 as following: F =3 as following: F =4 as following: F =5 as fo

D. Negotiations

ITC 29.1 Expected date and address for contract negotiations:

Date: 3rd Week of July, 2024.

Address: Office of Project Director, Project Management Unit, RFBDP Aravalli Bhawan, Jhalana Institutional Area, Jaipur Rajasthan India;

Tel: +91-141-2709101/5199654; email: rfbdp.afd@gmail.com

ITC 31.2 Expected date for the commencement of the Services:

Date: 1st Week of August 2024 in Rajasthan

Section III –Technical Proposal – Standard forms

Form TECH-1: Technical Proposal submission form

	[Location, Date]
To:	[Name and address of the Client]

Dear Sirs:

We, the undersigned, offer to provide the Services for Consultant for base line survey work under Rajasthan Forestry and Biodiversity Development Project in accordance with your Request for Proposals dated [Insert Date] and our Proposal. We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this technical Proposal and a financial Proposal.

[If the Consultant is a Joint Venture, insert the following: "We are submitting our Proposal as a Joint Venture with: [Insert a list with the full name and the legal address of each member, and indicate the lead member]"]. We have attached a copy [insert: "of our letter of intent to form a Joint Venture" or, if a JV is already formed, "of the JV agreement"] signed by every participating member, which details the likely legal structure of and the confirmation of joint and severable liability of the members of the said Joint Venture.

[OR

If the Consultant's Proposal includes Subconsultants, insert the following:]

We are submitting our Proposal with the following firms as Subconsultants: [Insert a list with full name and address of each Subconsultant].

We hereby declare that:

- All the information and statements made in this Proposal are true and we accept that any misrepresentation contained in this Proposal may lead to the rejection of our Proposal by the Client;
- b) Our Proposal shall be valid and remain binding upon us for the period of time specified in, Sub-Clause 12.1 of the Data Sheet;
- c) We have no conflict of interest in accordance with Clause 3 of the ITC;
- d) Except as stated in the Data Sheet, Sub-Clause 12.1, we undertake to negotiate a Contract on the basis of the proposed Key Experts. We accept that the substitution of Key Experts for reasons other than those stated in Sub-Clauses 12.5 and 29.3of the ITC shall end Contract negotiations;
- e) Our Proposal is binding upon us and subject to any modifications resulting from the Contract negotiations.

We undertake, if our Proposal is accepted and the Contract is signed, to initiate the Services related to the assignment no later than the date indicated in Sub-Clause 31.2 of the Data Sheet.

all Proposals at any time prior to Contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to us.
We remain,
Yours sincerely,
Authorizd Signature [in full and initials]:
Name and Title of Signatory:
Name of Consultant (company's name or JV's name):
In the capacity of:
Address:
Contact information (phone andemail):

Appendix to technical Proposal submission form - Statement of Integrity, Eligibility and Environmental and Social Responsibility

Reference name of the bid or proposal: .		(The "Contract")
То:	(T	he "Contracting Authority")

- 1. We recognise and accept that *Agence Française de Développement* ("**AFD**") only finances projects of the Contracting Authority subject to its own conditions which are set out in the Financing Agreement which benefits directly or indirectly to the Contracting Authority. As a matter of consequence, no legal relationship exists between AFD and our company, our joint venture or our suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants. The Contracting Authority retains exclusive responsibility for the preparation and implementation of the procurement process and performance of the contract. The Contracting Authority means the Purchaser, the Employer, the Client, as the case may be, for the procurement of goods, works, plants, consulting services or non-consulting services.
- 2. We hereby certify that neither we nor any other member of our joint venture or any of our suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants are in any of the following situations:
 - 2.1 Being bankrupt, wound up or ceasing our activities, having our activities administered by the courts, having entered into receivership, reorganisation or being in any analogous situation arising from any similar procedure;
 - 2.2 Having been:
 - a) convicted, within the past five years by a court decision, which has the force of res judicata in the country where the Contract is implemented, of fraud, corruption or of any other offense committed during a procurement process or performance of a contract (in the event of such conviction, you may attach to this Statement of Integrity supporting information showing that this conviction is not relevant in the context of the Contract);
 - subject to an administrative sanction within the past five years by the European Union or by the competent authorities of the country where we are constituted, for fraud, corruption or for any other offense committed during a procurement process or performance of a contract (in the event of such sanction, you may attach to this Statement of Integrity supporting information showing that this sanction is not relevant in the context of the Contract);
 - c) convicted, within the past five years by a court decision, which has the force of res judicata, of fraud, corruption or of any other offense committed during the procurement process or performance of an AFD-financed contract;
 - 2.3 Being listed for financial sanctions by the United Nations, the European Union and/or France for the purposes of fight-against-terrorist financing or threat to international peace and security;
 - 2.4 Having been subject within the past five years to a contract termination fully settled against us for significant or persistent failure to comply with our contractual obligations during contract performance, unless this termination was challenged and dispute resolution is still pending or has not confirmed a full settlement against us;
 - 2.5 Not having fulfilled our fiscal obligations regarding payments of taxes in accordance with the legal provisions of either the country where we are constituted or the Contracting Authority's country;
 - 2.6 Being subject to an exclusion decision of the World Bank and being listed on the website http://www.worldbank.org/debarr (in the event of such exclusion, you may attach to this

- Statement of Integrity supporting information showing that this exclusion is not relevant in the context of the Contract);
- 2.7 Having created false documents or committed misrepresentation in documentation requested by the Contracting Authority as part of the procurement process of the Contract.
- 3. We hereby certify that neither we, nor any of the members of our joint venture or any of our suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants are in any of the following situations of conflict of interest:
 - 3.1 Being an affiliate controlled by the Contracting Authority or a shareholder controlling the Contracting Authority, unless the stemming conflict of interest has been brought to the attention of AFD and resolved to its satisfaction.
 - 3.2 Having a business or family relationship with a Contracting Authority's staff involved in the procurement process or the supervision of the resulting Contract, unless the stemming conflict of interest has been brought to the attention of AFD and resolved to its satisfaction;
 - 3.3 Being controlled by or controlling another bidder or consultant, or being under common control with another bidder or consultant, or receiving from or granting subsidies directly or indirectly to another bidder or consultant, having the same legal representative as another bidder or consultant, maintaining direct or indirect contacts with another bidder or consultant which allows us to have or give access to information contained in the respective applications, bids or proposals, influencing them or influencing decisions of the Contracting Authority;
 - 3.4 Being engaged in a consulting services activity, which, by its nature, may be in conflict with the assignments that we would carry out for the Contracting Authority;
 - 3.5 In the case of procurement of goods, works or plants:
 - a) Having prepared or having been associated with a consultant who prepared specifications, drawings, calculations and other documentation to be used in the procurement process of the Contract;
 - b) Having been recruited (or being proposed to be recruited) ourselves or any of our affiliates, to carry out works supervision or inspection for the Contract.
- 4. If we are a state-owned entity, and to compete in a procurement process, we certify that we have legal and financial autonomy and that we operate under commercial laws and regulations.
- 5. We undertake to bring to the attention of the Contracting Authority, which will inform AFD, any change in situation with regard to points 2 to 4 here above.
- 6. In the context of the procurement process and performance of the corresponding contract:
 - 6.1 We have not and we will not engage in any dishonest conduct (act or omission) deliberately indented to deceive others, to intentionally conceal items, to violate or vitiate someone's consent, to make them circumvent legal or regulatory requirements and/or to violate their internal rules in order to obtain illegitimate profit;
 - 6.2 We have not and we will not engage in any dishonest conduct (act or omission) contrary to our legal or regulatory obligations or our internal rules in order to obtain illegitimate profit;
 - 6.3 We have not promised, offered or given and we will not promise, offer or give, directly or indirectly to (i) any Person who holds a legislative, executive, administrative or judicial mandate within the State of the Contracting Authority regardless of whether that Person was nominated or elected, regardless of the permanent or temporary, paid or unpaid nature of the position and regardless of the hierarchical level the Person occupies, (ii) any other Person who performs a public function, including for a State institution or a State-owned company, or who provides a public service, or (iii) any other person defined as a Public Officer by the national laws of the Contracting Authority's country, an undue advantage of any kind, for himself or for another Person or entity, for such Public Officer to act or refrain from acting in his official capacity;

- 6.4 We have not promised, offered or given and we will not promise, offer or give, directly or indirectly to any Person who occupies an executive position in a private sector entity or works for such an entity, regardless of the nature of his/her capacity, any undue advantage of any kind, for himself or another Person or entity for such Person to perform or refrain from performing any act in breach of its legal, contractual or professional obligations;
- 6.5 We have not and we will not engage in any practice likely to influence the contract award process to the detriment of the Contracting Authority and, in particular, in any anti-competitive practice having for object or for effect to prevent, restrict or distort competition, namely by limiting access to the market or the free exercise of competition by other undertakings;
- 6.6 Neither we nor any of the members of our joint venture or any of our suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants shall acquire or supply any equipment nor operate in any sectors under an embargo of the United Nations, the European Union or France;
- 6.7 We commit ourselves to comply with and ensure that all of our suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants comply with international environmental and labour standards, consistent with laws and regulations applicable in the country of implementation of the Contract, including the fundamental conventions of the International Labour Organisation (ILO) and international environmental treaties. Moreover, we shall implement environmental and social risks mitigation measures when specified in the environmental and social commitment plan (ESCP) provided by the Contracting Authority.
- 7. We, as well as members of our joint venture and our suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants authorise AFD to inspect accounts, records and other documents relating to the procurement process and performance of the contract and to have them audited by auditors appointed by AFD.

Name:	In the capacity of:	
Duly empowered to sign in the name ar	nd on behalf of¹:	
Signature:	Dated:	

¹ In case of joint venture, insert the name of the joint venture. The person who will sign the application, bid or proposal on behalf of the applicant, bidder or consultant shall attach a power of attorney from the applicant, bidder or consultant.

Form TECH-2: Technical Proposal

[Below is a suggested structure of the technical Proposal]

A. Consultant's Structure and Experience

[Provide here a brief description of the background and organization of your company, and - in case of a joint venture - of each member that will be participating in the Services, including an organizational chart, a list of board of directors, and beneficial ownership.]

B. Description of Approach, Methodology, and Work Plan in accordance with the Terms of Reference

a) Technical approach and methodology:

[Please explain your understanding of the objectives of the Services as outlined in the Terms of Reference (TORs), the technical approach, and the methodology you would adopt for implementing the tasks to deliver the expected output(s), and the degree of detail of such output. Include here your comments and suggestions on the TORs and comments on counterpart staff and facilities provided by the Client if any. Please do not repeat/copy the TORs in here.]

b) Work Plan

[Please outline the plan for the implementation of the main activities/tasks of the Services, their content and duration, phasing and interrelations, milestones (including interim approvals by the Client), and tentative delivery dates of the reports. The proposed work plan should be consistent with the technical approach and methodology, showing your understanding of the TORs and ability to translate them into a feasible working plan. A list of the final documents (including reports) to be delivered as final output(s) should be included here. The work schedule form (form TECH-3) may be used for that purpose.]

C. Consultant's Organization and Staffing

[Please describe the structure and composition of your team, including a list of the Key Experts, Non-Key Experts and relevant technical and administrative support staff, and staffing for training, if the Terms of Reference specify training as a specific component of the Services. CVs of all experts shall be provided (form TECH-4 may be used for that purpose).]

Form TECH-3: Work schedule and planning for deliverables

(Indicative format)

N°	Deliverables ¹ (D)	Month ²³								
		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	
D - 1	[e.g., Deliverable #1: Report A]									
	1. Data collection									
	2. Drafting									
	3. Inception report									
	4. Incorporating comments									
	5									
	6. Delivery of final report to Client									
	Etc.									
D - 2	[e.g., Deliverable #2:]									
	Etc.									
n										

List the deliverables with the breakdown for activities required to produce them and other benchmarks such as the Client's approvals. For phased Services, indicate separately for each phase.

² Duration of activities shall be indicated in a form of a bar chart.

³ Include a legend, if necessary, to help read the chart.

Form TECH-4: Curriculum Vitae (CV)

(Indicative format)

For team leader and key professionals as given in ITC 21.1 (2)

Position Title an	d No.:	[e.g., K-1, Team Leader]			
Name of Expert:		[insert full name]			
Date of Birth:		[day/month/year] [insert country]			
Country of Citize	enship/Residence:				
	college/university or other spec attended, degree(s)/diploma(s) ob		ng names of educational		
Please provide da performed and loc organization(s) wh	cord relevant to the Services: [Sates, name of employing organization of the assignment, and contact of can be contacted for reference need to be included.] Employing organization and y	ration, titles of position fact information of preves. Past employment	s held, types of activities ious clients and employing that is not relevant to the		
Period	title/position. Contact information for references	Country	activities performed relevant to the Services		
[e.g., May 2015 – present]	[e.g. Ministry of	/			
	rofessional Associations and Pu				
Language Skills (indicate only languages in whic	h you can work):			

Adequacy for the Services:

Detailed Tasks Assigned to Consultant's Team of Experts	Best Illustrates Ca	Vork/Assignments that pability to Handle the led Tasks
[List all deliverables/tasks]		
	<u> </u>	
Expert's contact information:[email:	, phone:]
Certification:		
I, the undersigned, certify that to the best of my know my qualifications, and my experience, and I am ava I understand that any misstatement or misrel disqualification or dismissal by the Client.	lable to undertake the Se	ervices in case of an award.
		[day/month/year]
Name of Expert	Signature	Date
		[day/month/year]
Name of authorized Representative of the Consultant [the same who signs the Proposal]	Signature	[day/month/year] Date

Tech 5: Format for Organization Details

The RFP Proposal must be submitted along with the following documents:

a) FORM 1: Organization Details

b) FORM 2: Compliance to Eligibility Criteria

Note: In case, documents submitted are in any language other than English, the consultant shall submit a self-certified copy of the translated document in English (along with originals).

Form 1: Organization Details

I.	Name of the Organization				
II.	Details of the Organization	 Address of the Registered Office: Telephone: Website: 			
III.	Information about Organization	Year of Establishment:Status of the Organization:			
IV.	Name and designation of the person authorized to make commitments	NameDesignationE-mailContact Number			
V.	Annual Turnover for the last three Financial Years (The lead bidder should have a minimum average annual turnover of INR 2 Crore or equivalent over the last three financial years)	Financial Year Annual Turnover (INR) 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 Please attach audited annual accounts statements for last 3 years and a CA certificate for average annual turnover and positive net			
		worth. The CA certificate shall also be duly sealed and signed by the authorized representative of the bidder.			

Form 6: Compliance to Eligibility Criterion

S. No.	Eligibility Criteria	Compliance	Documentary
		(Yes/ No)	Evidence to be provided
1	Entity legally registered under appropriate authority for last 10 years.		Certificate of Incorporation/ Registration
2	The lead bidder should have a minimum average annual turnover of INR 2.0 crore or equivalent over the last three financial years (FY 2019-2020, FY 2020-2021 and FY 2021-22)		Self-certification. Copies of the audited balance sheet and I/E Statement duly sealed and certified by the CA and the authorized representative of the bidder.
3	Experience of Baseline / Midterm / Evaluation studies for Externally Aided Projects in the field of Forestry/Wildlife/ Agriculture/ Livelihood/ Community Mobilization/ Institutional Building/Microfinance & Linkages aspect in India in the last 10 years with contract value more than Rs. 15 lacs		Copy of work order / Completion certificate of assignment

Section IV – Financial Proposal – Standard forms

Form FIN-1: Financial Proposal submission form

[Location, Date]

To:
[Name and address of Glient]
Dear Sirs,
We, the undersigned, offer to provide the Services for [Insert title of Services] in accordance with your Request for Proposal dated [Insert Date] and our technical Proposal.
Our attached financial Proposal is for the amount of [Indicate amount(s) in words and figures for each currency(ies)], excluding taxes, duties and fees as perSub-Clause 16.3 of the Data Sheet. The estimated amount of theseapplicable taxes, duties and feesin the Client's country is [Insert amount in words and figures and currency] which shall be confirmed or adjusted, if needed, during negotiations. [Please note that all amounts shall be the same as in form FIN-2]
Our financial Proposal shall be binding upon us subject to the modifications resulting from Contract negotiations, up to expiration of the validity period of the Proposal, i.e. before the date indicated in Sub-Clause 12.1 of the Data Sheet.
We understand you reserve the right to annul the process and reject all Proposals at any time prior to Contract award.
We remain,
Yours sincerely,
Authorized Signature: [In full and initials]
Name and Title of Signatory:
In the capacity of:
Address:
Email:
[For a Joint Venture, either all members shall sign or only the lead member/consultant, in which case the power of attorney to sign on behalf of all members shall be attached.]

Form FIN-2: Summary of Costs (To be filled in BOQ only)

[Note: In the case of a conditional phase, this must appear separately in the tables, and the total price of the Proposal must include the amount of the conditional phase.]

TIME-BASED CONTRACT (UNIT PRICES)

THRE-BAGED CONTINACT (CINTT NICES)					
	Cost				
Item	[Consultant must state the proposed Costs in accordance with Sub-Clause 16.4 of the Data Sheet; delete				
Item	columns which are not used]				
	[Insert foreign currency]	[Insert local currency]			
Cost of the Financial Proposal (excluding taxes) ¹ :	Cost of the Financial Proposal (excluding taxes) ¹ :				
Remuneration					
 Other expenses [specify lump-sum or reimbursable] 					
Total Cost of the Financial Proposal (excluding taxes)1:					
[this amount must be the same as in the Form FIN-1]					
Taxes Estimates ² in the Client's country – to be discussed an	Taxes Estimates ² in the Client's country – to be discussed and finalized at the negotiations if the Contract is awarded				
 Value Added Tax (VAT) or equivalent 					
 Withholding tax³ 					
 Contract registration fees⁴ 					
 Customs duties 					
Total Estimate for taxes, duties and fees in the Client's					
country:					

NB: (i) Payments will be made in the currency(ies) expressed above (Reference to ITC 16.4)

¹ Taxes, duties and fees to be excluded from the Financial Proposal and presented separately are indicated in Sub-Clause 16.3 of the ITC.

² List here the taxes, duties and fees to be presented separately in accordance with Sub-Clause 16.3 of the ITC.

On the invoices from the Consultant based outside the Client's country.

⁴ Add a line here if there are other similar fees such as a fee to the regulatory body for public procurement, or equivalent.

Section V – Eligibility Criteria

Eligibility in AFD-Financed Procurement

- 1. Financing allocated by AFD to a Contracting Authority has been entirely untied since 1st January 2002. To the exception of any equipment or any sector which is subject to an embargo by the United Nations, the European Union or France, all goods, works, plants, consulting services and non-consulting services are eligible for AFD financing regardless of the country of origin of the supplier, contractor, subcontractor, consultant or subconsultant inputs or resources used in the implementation processes. The Contracting Authority means the Purchaser, the Employer, the Client, as the case may be, for the procurement of goods, works, plants, consulting services or non-consulting services.
- 2. Natural or legal Persons¹ (including all members of a joint venture or any of their suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants) shall not be awarded an AFD-financed contract if, on the date of submission of an application, a bid or a proposal, or on the date of award of a contract, they:
 - 2.1 Are bankrupt or being wound up or ceasing their activities, are having their activities administered by the courts, have entered into receivership, or are in any analogous situation arising from a similar procedure;

2.2 Have been:

- a) convicted, within the past five years by a court decision, which has the force of res judicata in the country where the contract is implemented, of fraud, corruption or of any other offense committed during a procurement process or performance of a contract, unless they provide supporting information together with their Statement of Integrity (Form available as Appendix to the Application, Bid or Proposal Submission Form) which shows that this conviction is not relevant in the context of the Contract;
- b) subject to an administrative sanction within the past five years by the European Union or by the competent authorities of the country where they are constituted, for fraud, corruption or for any other offense committed during a procurement process or performance of a contract, unless they provide supporting information together with their Statement of Integrity (Form available as Appendix to the Application, Bid or Proposal Submission Form) which shows that this sanction is not relevant in the context of the Contract;
- c) convicted, within the past five years by a court decision, which has the force of res judicata, of fraud, corruption or of any other offense committed during the procurement process or performance of an AFD-financed contract;
- 2.3 Are listed for financial sanctions by the United Nations, the European Union and/or France for the purposes of fight-against-terrorist financing or threat to international peace and security;
- 2.4 Have been subject within the past five years to a contract termination fully settled against them for significant or persistent failure to comply with their contractual obligations during contract performance, unless this termination was challenged and dispute resolution is still pending or has not confirmed a full settlement against them;
- 2.5 Have not fulfilled their fiscal obligations regarding payments of taxes in accordance with the legal provisions of either the country where they are constituted or the Contracting Authority's country;
- 2.6 Are subject to an exclusion decision of the World Bank and are listed on the website http://www.worldbank.org/debarr, unless they provide supporting information together with

Means any Person whether natural or legal, firm, company, corporation, government, state or state agency or any association, or group of two or more of the foregoing (whether or not having separate legal status).

- their Statement of Integrity (Form available as Appendix to the Application, Bid or Proposal Submission Form) which shows that this exclusion is not relevant in the context of the Contract;
- 2.7 Have created false documents or committed misrepresentation in documentation requested by the Contracting Authority as part of the procurement process of the Contract.
- 3. State-owned entities may compete only if they can establish that they (i) are legally and financially autonomous, and (ii) operate under commercial law. To be eligible, a state-owned entity shall establish to AFD's satisfaction, through all relevant documents, including its Charter and other information AFD may request, that it: (i) is a legal entity separate from their state (ii) does not currently receive substantial subsidies or budget support; (iii) operates like any commercial enterprise, and, inter alia, is not obliged to pass on its surplus to their state, can acquire rights and liabilities, borrow funds and be liable for repayment of its debts, and can be declared bankrupt.

Section VI – AFD Policy – Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices –Environmental and Social Responsibility

1. Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

The Contracting Authority and the suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants must observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement process and performance of the contract. The Contracting Authority means the Purchaser, the Employer, the Client, as the case may be, for the procurement of goods, works, plants, consulting services or non-consulting services.

By signing the Statement of Integrity the suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants declare that (i) "it did not engage in any practice likely to influence the contract award process to the Contracting Authority's detriment, and that it did not and will not get involved in any anticompetitive practice", and that (ii) "the procurement process and the performance of the contract did not and shall not give rise to any act of corruption or fraud".

Moreover, AFD requires including in the Procurement Documents and AFD-financed contracts a provision requiring that suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants will permit AFD to inspect their accounts and records relating to the procurement process and performance of the AFD-financed contract, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by AFD.

AFD reserves the right to take any action it deems appropriate to check that these ethics rules are observed and reserves, in particular, the rights to:

- Reject a proposal for a contract award if it is established that during the selection process the bidder or consultant that is recommended for the award has been convicted of corruption, directly or by means of an agent, or has engaged in fraud or anti-competitive practices in view of being awarded the Contract;
- b) Declare misprocurement when it is established that, at any time, the Contracting Authority, the suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants their representatives have engaged in acts of corruption, fraud or anti-competitive practices during the procurement process or performance of the contract without the Contracting Authority having taken appropriate action in due time satisfactory to AFD to remedy the situation, including by failing to inform AFD at the time they knew of such practices.

AFD defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:

- a) Corruption of a Public Officer means:
 - The act of promising, offering or giving to a Public Officer, directly or indirectly, an undue advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person¹ or entity, for such Public Officer to act or refrain from acting in his official capacity; or
 - The act by which a Public Officer solicits or accepts, directly or indirectly, an undue advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person or entity, for such Public Officer to act or refrain from acting in his official capacity.
- b) A Public Officer shall be construed as meaning:
 - Any person who holds a legislative, executive, administrative or judicial mandate (within the country of the Contracting Authority) regardless of whether that natural Person was nominated or elected, regardless of the permanent or temporary, paid or unpaid nature of the position and regardless of the hierarchical level the natural Person occupies;
 - Any other natural Person who performs a public function, including for a State institution or a State-owned company, or who provides a public service;

Means any Person whether natural or legal, firm, company, corporation, government, state or state agency or any association, or group of two or more of the foregoing (whether or not having separate legal status).

- Any other natural Person defined as a Public Officer by the national laws of the country of the Contracting Authority.
- c) Corruption of a Private Person²means:
 - The act of promising, offering or giving to any Private Person, directly or indirectly, an undue advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person or entity, for such Private Person to perform or refrain from performing any act in breach of its legal, contractual or professional obligations; or;
 - The act by which any Private Person solicits or accepts, directly or indirectly, an undue advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person or entity, for such Private Person to perform or refrain from performing any act in breach of its legal, contractual or professional obligations.
- d) Fraud means any dishonest conduct (act or omission), whether or not it constitutes a criminal offence, deliberately intended to deceive others, to intentionally conceal items, to violate or vitiate consent, to circumvent legal or regulatory requirements and/or to violate internal rules in order to obtain illegitimate profit.
- e) Anti-competitive practices mean:
 - Any concerted or implied practices which have as their object or effect the prevention, restriction or distortion of competition within a marketplace, especially where they (i) limit access to the marketplace or free exercise of competition by other undertakings, (ii) prevent free, competition-driven price determination by artificially causing price increases or decreases, (iii) restrict or control production, markets, investments or technical progress; or (iv) divide up market shares or sources of supply;
 - Any abuse by one undertaking or a group of undertakings which hold a dominant position on an internal market or on a substantial part of it;
 - Any practice whereby prices are quoted or set unreasonably low, the object of which is to eliminate an undertaking or any of its products from a market or to prevent it from entering the market.

2. Environmental and Social Responsibility

In order to promote sustainable development, AFD seeks to ensure that internationally recognised environmental and social standards are complied with. Suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants for AFD-financed contracts shall consequently undertake in the Statement of Integrity to:

- a) Comply with and ensure that all their subcontractors or subconsultants comply with international environmental and labour standards, consistent with applicable law and regulations in the country of implementation of the contract, including the fundamental conventions of the International Labour Organisation (ILO) and international environmental treaties;
- b) Implement environmental and social risks mitigation measures when specified in the environmental and social management plan (ESMP) provided by the Contracting Authority.

² Means any natural Person other than a Public Officer.

Section VII - Terms of Reference

Scope of Work for Baseline Study for RFBDP Project

1. Objectives of the baseline study:

In order to ascertain the socio-economic & environmental impact of the project activities on the local inhabitants and ecological aspects of the project villages, the project is expected to undertake a detailed village profiling and household level socio-economic survey in selected villages. It is expected that the baseline information would help in understanding the general physical setup and socio-economic status of the households of typical forestland-fringe villages in the project area to evaluate their, current social, economic, gender, health & education status. This will act as the baseline data depicting the current situation before the implementation of the project and would be useful source of information for impact assessment studies in future. Following are the specific objectives of the baseline survey:

- 1. To create a socio-economic and environmental/ecological and profile of representative target villages.
- To collect quantitative household level socio-economic data (including ESMS/Gender data) in selected sample villages.
- 3. To compile and collate the data collected.
- 4. To analyze the data and prepare detailed report.

2. Terms of Reference:

The detailed Terms of Reference (TOR) for the assignment is as specified hereunder:

- Inception meeting with PMU: Immediately after contract signing the Resource Organization shall discuss with the Project Management Unit (PMU), RFBDP regarding the work and provide the detailed work plan.
- II. **Methodology of data collection and Focused Group Discussion:** The Resource Organization shall develop a detailed methodology of sampling technique to cover all horizontal and vertical stratification present in the village, data collection, recording and Focused Group Discussion (FGD) detailing aspects like; key areas to be covered, Developing questionnaire and key questions to be asked, method of facilitation and recording, FGD mechanism, etc., shall be indicated in detail and discussed with PMU for approval.
- 3. Sample village selection: In total, 100 villages are to be surveyed from among the 800 project villages. Out of this, 15 villages to be selected from outside area of the project as control village. Out of 100 selected villages, 50 villages shall be from territorial and 35 villages from wildlife areas, hence 85 villages will be surveyed from the project area of RFBDP. The selection of villages shall be done by PMU as per the requirement based on socio-economic or physiographical/geographical zonation.

The project villages are to be selected from 13 districts Alwar, Baran, Bhilwara, Bharatpur, Bundi, Dausa, Dholpur, Jaipur, Jhalawar, Karauli, Kota, Sawaimadhopur and Tonk. within the Territorial and Wild life Divisions of RFBDP Project.

In case, if in any of the identified village it is not possible to conduct household survey, the Resource Organization shall intimate this to PMU along with reasons thereof. If PMU agrees to this, then another alternative village will be selected as a substitute from within the project villages. Minimum 30% of the households need to be surveyed from each sample village. Household selection shall be based on low (15% of households), middle (10% of households), high income (5% of households) criteria.

- 4. **Quesionnaire Preparation:** The Resource Organization shall prepare two sets of questionnaire and would finalize the same in consultation with the PMU. The questionnaires would cover:
 - Questionnaire-1: Brief Village Profile.

Questionnaire-2: Household Level Socio-Economic details.

In the Village profile the questionnaire should capture vital village level aspects such as indicated below:

- Village location
- Demographic details
- Infrastructure facilities available in the village (including geographical coordinates)
- Basic amenities in the village and/or nearest places (places & proximity in terms of distance)
- Land use pattern in the village (area details)
- Status/ Quality of Forest Cover including Biodiversity
- Man-animal conflict, availability of prey in wildlife areas.
- Water sources and availability of Water including seasonal variation.
- Estimation of no. of trees species wise on farm lands and community land using sampling techniques.
- · Status of orans in project area
- Source of Livelihood and activities of people living in the village (emphasis on women)
- Any predominant unexplored livelihood opportunities noticed
- Status of village institutions village level committees, forest protection committees, Self Help Groups, Youth clubs etc.
- Type of livestock available in the village
- National/state schemes / flagship programme available in the village for the purpose of convergence.
- * ESMS/Gender Action Plan related Data
- · Gender status including women existing skill set/ entrepreneurship
- Any other important aspect.

Similarly, some of the important aspects that shall be included in the household level questionnaire which are relevant for the project are:

- Geographical coordinates of the selected Household (Latitude/ Longitude)
- Profile of sample household (with female headed households also)
- Education/Literacy
- Itemized household assets
- * Basic amenities that includes Water Resource, Energy consumption, electrification
- Itemized household income and cost of production (including income from agriculture, processed/unprocessed forest produce, wage labour, other sources)
- Itemized volumes of all forest resources collected annually by all household members (for sale and home consumption disaggregated by gender)
- In kind benefit
- Annual household expense
- Dependence on fuel/ fire wood from forest
- Availability percentage wise of fuel / fire wood from different sources e.g. Forest. Revenue, Private
- · Fuel wood requirement
- Market Accessibility
- Migratory trends
- Health status
- Data aimed at Gender mainstreaming (for all project activities). Gender inclusion from economically weaker sections including SC, ST and women headed households.
- ESMS related data
- Any other point at the time of questionnaire preparation.

The questionnaire should be designed so as to capture Territorial and Wildlife area scenarios. The final questionnaire (s) are to be approved by the PMU before initiation of survey activities by the Resource Organization. Annexure 2 and 3 shall be reference for baseline study.

- 5. **Translation**: The Resource Organization shall translate the final approved questionnaire in Hindi.
- 6. **Selection of experts**: The resource organization shall recruit at least 03 experts for this study, the qualifications of whom will be a part of firm's technical evaluation criteria. Details of expert's qualification and experience is given in point no 19: Key Professionals.
- 7. **Selection of Surveyors and computer operators**: The Resource Organization shall recruit staff with appropriate qualification and experience that will interview and document the household level details in the field. The Resource Organization shall also identify and assign suitable computer operators who will undertake data punching in the computer based software and perform data verification/error detection as part of routine Quality Control mechanism.
- 8. **Database Structure Development**: The Resource Organization shall develop simple data entry interface and systematic relational database structure to facilitate data entry, quality checking, data query and simple analysis.
- 9. Training: The Resource Organization will organize required 2-3 days training program for survey supervisors, surveyors and computer operators to maintain consistency among all the surveyors and data entry operators/QC team. The training shall cover aspects to develop common understanding about questionnaire, method of interview and FGD, procedure of recording details with accuracy and data entry modules. The Survey Agency may train extra field personnel to ensure that there is a sufficient number of field staff to conduct the survey fieldwork after accounting for attrition and the dismissal of personnel who are found not to meet the minimum requirements.
- 10. Field testing of the questionnaire and its finalization: Before the full-fledged work start in identified villages, two sample villages will be identified in consultation with PMU from different divisions for testing the questionnaire, FGD and survey methodology. The Resource Organization shall submit a draft report with analysis of the data collected from 2 sample villages. Field testing of questionnaire must be done in the presence of the person nominated by DMU/FMU. The learning's will be incorporated within questionnaire/methods suitably, before initiating survey activity in remaining villages.
- 11. **Creation of Master list of Households**: Before the initiation of questionnaire based household level survey activity a master list of all households shall be prepared by Survey Agency. Identifying, selecting and Registering details of Village resident Women for proposed IGA, SHG & as tree growers, ensuring 50% Hiring, Involvement, Participation & Leadership Roles of Women in Entire Project Capacity. The number of households to be surveyed will vary depending upon the total number of households in the village. After identification of the villages to be surveyed, information about the total number of households present in the village and their stratification would be analyzed from the Micro Plan data available with the project at the time of initiation of the work. This would figure out the required number of Households to be surveyed from each of the village.
- 12. **Inception Report along with Field Plan:** The Resource Organization shall prepare an Inception Report illustrating detailed information of the target villages, basic approach, methodologies of interview / FGD and data analysis, final questionnaire, composition and bio data of project team, detailed day-to-day field plan, etc. The report shall be submitted to PMU for approval.
- 13. Conduct of village survey/profiling: The village profiling will be done using the questionnaire as discussed in point no. 4 of ToR. The Surveyors may use selected tools of PRA. During village profiling the natural resources details, infrastructure facilities and sites of enumeration and specific measurements in the field should be geocoded for location specific information using handheld 'GPS' (for Latitude and Longitude) and also to be 'photographed' and properly numbered with caption and place of photograph. The date and time of photography should be also digitally recorded on the photograph itself.
 - A. Conduct of household survey: After due approval of questionnaire and methodology of data collection and FGD, and completion of appropriate training, the Resource Organization shall start the work in the field. In the field a surveyor is expected to interview a household head (or

someone who is most knowledgeable of his/her household. Identify Women under poverty conditions for involvement in income generation activities. land entitle holder Women for engagement as tree growers and micro reserves planning and register such women for prospective project beneficiaries at the time of implementation.) Data should be neatly entered in the questionnaire. On daily basis, once each surveyor has conducted face to face individual interview, FGD shall be organized to validate the data. After collecting complete village data all the surveyors covering one village should sit together with the Chairman of respective VFPMC and/or village head and village institutions to validate the data collected from various sources. Complete data are to be disaggregated by sex viz Male & Female. All duly filled questionnaires must be signed by the village institutions, field investigator, and supervisor along with the date of interview. Duly filled questionnaire should be verified by the member secretary of VFPMC /EDC.

- B. Spot and sample verification: The data collected by the surveyors shall be validated on random basis by survey supervisors during or immediately after the interview survey for assessment of the quality of data collected and immediate remedial measures. On sample basis interview based household level data will also be verified by member appointed by PMU in presence of survey supervisor by randomly selecting sample households. The feedbacks with detailed observations need to be incorporated by the Resource Organization for appropriate rectification and leanings to be immediately incorporated for improvement in on-going survey.
- 14. Entry and compilation of data collected, including data cleansing: Data cleansing will include range checks, structure checks and a selected set of checks for internal consistency. All errors detected during the editing procedure shall be corrected by the QC team. In addition, FGD records shall be well documented in MS Word/MS Excel.
- **15. Data Analysis**: The compiled data and FGD records shall be analyzed by using statistical methods, range & division-wise.
- 16. Submission of Reports: A report should be submitted after completing every 20 villages which should include the brief description of survey methodologies, processes and findings. It should also include the detail description of data analysis result. The analysis report should also include appropriate diagrams and charts to suffice the results. All data generated in study will be the property of the Rajasthan Forest Department.

17. Deliverables

The following are the expected deliverables from this assignment, the reports shall be submitted in **03** hard copies along with soft copy in editable format:

- Inception report: An inception report incorporating findings of desk review, a conceptual framework of the assessment, details of applicable tools and methodologies together with details of the work plan, checklists, time schedules as well as a tentative table of contents for the final baseline report.
- II. Draft and final reports: Detailed draft report meeting the objectives of the ToR and with the methodologies in line with the table of contents developed and agreed upon in the Inception Report. The final baseline study report will be the end product after incorporation of all the comments from reviewers.
- III. Raw generated data/datasets: The consultant needs to submit the data generated in the process of this study in Excel as well as other field-related photos during field observation in a well-organized format (revised, reformatted, if required) that can be easily decipherable to the PMU RFBDP.
- IV. Any other work that is necessary for the completion of household survey, data entry and statistical analysis.

18. Key Professionals

	Team Leader	Forestry and Environment Expert	Sociology Expert	Surveyor
Academic qualification s	Master's Degree in Business Administration/ Sociology/ MSW and other related field	Bachelor's Degree in Environment al Science/ Forestry/ Agriculture/ Life Sciences or related field	Bachelor's Degree in sociology or economics or relevant field	Minimum 12 th pass from a recognized board
Experience	 10 years of progressively responsible related professional experience Demonstrated experience working with national governments, communities, and diverse stakeholder groups At least 5 listed assignments in conducting similar studies (Baseline, midterm, end-line) and research studies in related field Proof of experience in applying or engaging in community participatory approaches to natural resource management. Demonstrated experience leading field and/or research teams 	5 years of progressivel y responsible related professional experience At least 3 listed assignments in undertaking terrestrial inventories or similar	5 years of progressively responsible related professional experience At least 3 listed assignments in undertaking participatory approaches or similar studies Experience in the area of gender integration and women's empowermen t	Past experienc e in the field of household survey, data collection procedure s, preferably in the state of Rajasthan . Good communic ation skills and knowledg e of Hindi language is a must.

19. Estimated value and duration of baseline study: Rs. 50 lacs, 04 months.

20. Products & Payment Schedule

The expected duration of the consultancy is 6 months upon signing of the contract. The tentative schedule of deliverables is as follows:

Sr. No.	Products	Payment Schedule
1	Baseline planning and design	5 % of the contract value
2	Submission of the inception report	5 % of the contract value
3	1st draft report of 30 villages	15% of the contract value
4	2 nd draft report of aditional 30 villages	15% of the contract value
5	3rd draft report of aditional 40 villages	15% of the contract value
6	Submission of the draft report of 100 villages	20% of the contract value
7	After approval of Final report and handing over of raw data, Soft copy of data	25% of the contract value

Annexure 1: Project Indicative Targets

Aggregated indicators	Indicative target (upto 2030)	Comments
Number of inhabitants of a territory benefiting from biodiversity conservation/restoration	2,500,000	The target of this indicator will be specified in conjunction with the Rajasthan Forest Department, as these are forest villagers living on the edge of protected areas affected by the project.
of which No. of women living in a territory benefiting from biodiversity conservation/ restoration	1,250,000	The target of this indicator will be specified in conjunction with the Rajasthan Forest Department, as these are forest villagers living on the edge of protected areas affected by the project. In principle, half of the indicator above.
Areas benefiting from biodiversity conservation/restoration programmes	1 110,000 ha	This area exceeds the only protected areas already classified, for example the creation of a corridor for tiger migration
Number of people whose access conditions to basic equipment, infrastructure and services have been permanently improved	440,000	Indicator based on 800 communities of 100 households of 5.5 persons
Number of women whose conditions of access to basic equipment, infrastructure and services have been permanently improved	220 000	

Annexure 2: Indicators for field activities

S.N	Indicator description	Meas	surement	Data Collection and frequency to be undertaken
1	Number of people in vulnerable situations supported (% of total Beneficiary)	Men Belonging to EWS/BPL/S C/ST	Women Belonging to EWS/BPL/SC/ST	Annual collection (means employment/Incentives/SHG/c ompensation assistance given in convergence of activities)
2	Number of inhabitants of a territory benefiting from biodiversity conservation/restoration action	Men case-by-case beneficiaries development, communities e Survival rate o	plantation by	Annual Jobs created (wages) / Incentives (Male/Female) in Rehabilitation of forests Natural regeneration Fuel wood plantation Enrichment of old plantations Micro reserves & tree cover outside forests Improvements to quality of life (Qualitative)

		*Remote sensing will be used by PMU to monitor nature and biodiversity indicators.		Annual Assessment records of VFPMC/EDC/FMU /DMU /CMU
	% of protected areas in Hectares. Undertaken for :		Exante baseline + Expost endline	
3	Areas where ecosystems and their biodiversity have been conserved or restored [BL1] -	Bisalpur & Umadeganj conservation reserve development Restoration of Corridor and Habitat Improvement work between Ranathambore & Ramgarh Vishdhari Sanctury Bundi Development of Bharatpur & Bhensrodgarh Wildlife Sancturies. *Impact Measurement & remote sensing by PMU * Field surveys by Baseline		No annual collect. Final result indicator to Map success / Failure of Activity. Data on Trend of 2023 and the year of project completion only.
		Male	Female	% of disaggregate woman and
	Number of people	Employees	Employees	man beneficiaries
4	whose conditions of access to basic equipment,	Beneficiaries of Activities	Beneficiaries of Activities	Exante baseline + Expost endline
	infrastructure and services have been improved in a sustainable manner in meeting Physical and economic accessibility, availability and quality infrastructures w.r.t. women friendly infrastructures Drainage line treatment Water point construction Percolation tanks Anicuts/ Check Dams Contour Bunds/Gabion Structures construcuted		No annual collect. Final result indicator to Map success / Failure of Activity. Data on Trend of 2023 and the year of project completion only (Satisfaction Survey by 2029)	
5	Number of local land management institutions supported	Local institutions: VFPMC's/EDC's/Women sub- committee's Training undertaken for Forest Staff		Annual collection : Attendance Records of every meeting Training participant's data segregated on Male/Female

Annexure 3: Gender Indicator Matrix

Indicators	Target	Baseline	
Female Employment cut across paid project activities	50% Employment to females	Income Augmentation in INR	
Self-Reliant Women with Self Help Group/livelihood generation	Number of Independent Women in Self Help Group	Income/ Savings Augmentation in INR	
Beneficiaries of convergence, compensations and assistance. (converging project interventions with existing schemes for concessional credit, skill upgradation, enterprise development etc. being provided by other institutions to forest fringe communities.)	Number of Beneficiaries/Women entrepreneurs linked with existing schemes	Income Augmentation in INR Convergence strategy and action plan to be prepared by PMC (Compensation assistance transferred to the joint account of Spouse/ accounts of women- headed households)	
Capacity Building/ Training to Women/ (WSHG) Record keeping Trainings/ Skill upgradation /Technical/Eco Management/ IGA training Facilitation	Number of Men/ Women Trainees/Participants	Reducing gender disparities. Women as change Agents.	
Personnel Training	Number of Staff, Trainees/Participants (Men/ Women)	Outreach & knowledge-sharing Across project Trainings.	
Awareness Creation & Sensitization on GBV	Number of awareness creation/sensitization points	Dismantle harmful masculinities with Men as change agents. Villages / Communities sensitized with Communication, Extension (CET activities viz. Workshops / Seminars / Display Points/Wall Painting helpline nos. / Police rescue contacts etc.	
Facilitate Gender equity towards access to Resources (Entry Point Activities)	Direct / Indirect Beneficiaries to be expressed in Percentage of total population benefitted	Gender responsive actions under Entry Point Activities	
Women Participation in VFPMC's/EDC's	Attendance Records	Gender parity & Enhanced gender dialogue	
Advancing Women Leadership / Decision making role in VFPMC's/EDC's & Sub-committee GRM	Number of Women Leaders in Each VFPMC/EDC/Subcommittee of VFPMC for GRM	Power Dynamics	
Representation of women in Grievance Mechanisms.	Yes	Women in grievance mechanisms GRM at FMUs /DMU/ and (PMU) State level	

PART II – CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND CONTRACT FORMS

Section VIII – Conditions of Contract and Contract forms

CONTRACT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES

Project Name: Rajasthan Forestry and Biodiversity Development Project (RFBDP)
Contract No.:
Between
Rajasthan Forest Department, Government of Rajasthan
and
[Name of the Consultant]
Date:

Contents

1-1	FOR	M OF CONTRACT	52
II –	GEN	NERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	54
A	٩.	General Provisions	54
E	3.	Commencement, Completion, Modification and Termination of Contract	56
(С.	Obligations of the Consultant	60
	Ο.	Consultant's Experts and Subconsultants	63
E	Ξ.	Obligations of the Client	64
F	=.	Payment to the Consultant	66
(Э.	Fairness and Good Faith	68
H	Ⅎ.	Settlement of Disputes	68
		ACHMENT 1: AFD Policy - Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices - Environmental and Sponsibility	
	ATT	ACHMENT 2: Eligibility Criteria	72
III –	SPE	ECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	74
IV -	APF	PENDICES	82
	APP	PENDIX A – Terms of Reference	82
	APP	PENDIX B – Consultant's technical Proposal including methodology and Key Experts	82
	APP	PENDIX C – Breakdown of Contract Price Error! Bookmark not def	ined.
	APP	PENDIX D – Form of advance payment quarantee	82

I - FORM OF CONTRACT

Thiscontract (hereinafter called the "Contract") is made the [number]day of the month of [month], [year], between, on the one hand, [name of Client] (hereinafter called the "Client") and, on the other hand, [nameof Consultant] (hereinafter called the "Consultant").

[Note: If the Consultant consist of more than one entity, the above should be partially amended to read as follows: "...(hereinafter called the "Client") and, on the other hand, a Joint Venture [name of the JV] consisting of the following entities, each member of which will be jointly and severally liable to the Client for all the Consultant's obligations under the Contract, namely, [name of member] and [name of member] (hereinafter called the "Consultant")."]

WHEREAS:

- 1. The Client has requested the Consultant to provide services as defined in the Terms of Reference specified in **Appendix A** of the Contract (hereinafter called the "**Services**");
- 2. The Consultant, having represented to the Client that it has the required professional skills, expertise and technical resources, has agreed to provide the Services on the terms and conditions set forth in the Contract:
- 3. The Client has received funds from *Agence Française de Développement* ("**AFD**") toward the cost of the Services and intends to apply a portion of these funds to eligible payments under the Contract, it being understood that (i) payments by AFD will be made only at the request of the Client and upon approval by AFD; (ii) such payments will be subject, in all respects, to the terms and conditions of the agreement between the Client and AFD providing for the funds, and (iii) no party other than the Client shall derive any rights from the agreement or have any claim to the funds proceeds.

NOW THEREFORE the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

- 1. The following documents attached hereto shall be deemed to form an integral part of the Contract:
 - The General Conditions of Contract, including Attachment 1 (AFD Policy Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices – Social and Environmental Responsibility), and Attachment 2 (Eligibility Criteria).
 - b) The Special Conditions of Contract.
 - c) Appendices:
 - Appendix A: Terms of Reference;
 - Appendix B: Consultant's technical Proposal (including methodology and Experts, and the signed Statement of Integrity);
 - Appendix C: Breakdown of the Contract Price(s);
 - Appendix D: Form of Advance Payment Guarantee.

In the event of any inconsistency between the documents, the following priority order shall prevail: the Special Conditions of Contract; the General Conditions of Contract, including Attachment 1, Attachment 2, Appendix A; Appendix B; Appendix C and Appendix D. Any reference to the Contract shall include, where the context permits, a reference to its Appendices.

- The mutual rights and obligations of the Client and the Consultant shall be as set forth in the Contract, in particular:
 - The Consultant shall carry out the Services in accordance with the provisions of the Contract; and
 - b) The Client shall make payments to the Consultant in accordance with the provisions of the Contract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused the Contract to be signed in their respective names as of the day and year first above written:
For and on behalf of Rajasthan Forest Department, Government of Rajasthan
[Authorized Representative of the Client – name, title and signature]
For and on behalf of [Name of Consultant or Name of a Joint Venture]
[Authorized Representative of the Consultant – name and signature]
[Note : For a joint venture, either all members shall sign or only the lead member, in which case the power of attorney to sign on behalf of all members shall be attached.]
For and on behalf of each of the members of the Consultant [Name of the lead member]
[Authorized Representative on behalf of a Joint Venture]
[add signature blocks for each member if all are signing]

II – GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

A. General Provisions

1 Definitions

- 1.1 Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms whenever used in this contract have the following meanings:
 - a) "Applicable law" means the laws and any other instruments having the force of law in the Client's country, or in such other country as may be specified in the Special Conditions of Contract (SCC), as they may be issued and in force from time to time.
 - b) **"AFD"** means Agence Française de Développement (AFD).
 - "Client" means the implementing agency that signs the Contract for the Services with the selected Consultant.
 - d) "Consultant" means a legally-established professional consulting firm or entity selected by the Client to provide the Services under the signed Contract.
 - e) "Contract" means the legally binding written agreement signed between the Client and the Consultant and which includes all the attached documents listed in its paragraph 1 of the Form of Contract (the General Conditions (GCC), the Special Conditions (SCC), and the Appendices).
 - f) "Day" means a calendar day unless indicated otherwise.
 - g) **"Effective Date"** means the date on which the Contract comes into force and effect pursuant to Clause GCC 11.
 - h) **"Experts"** means, collectively, Key Experts, Non-Key Experts, or any other personnel of the Consultant, Subconsultant or JV member(s) assigned by the Consultant to perform the Services or any part thereof under the Contract.
 - "Foreign Currency" means any currency other than the currency of the Client's country.
 - j) "GCC" means these General Conditions of Contract.
 - k) "Joint Venture (JV)" means an association with or without a legal personality distinct from that of its members, of more than one entity where one member has the authority to conduct all businesses for and on behalf of any and all the members of the JV, and where the members of the JV are jointly and severally liable to the Client for the performance of the Contract.
 - I) "Key Expert(s)" means an individual professional whose skills, qualifications, knowledge and experience are critical to the performance of the Services under the Contract and whose Curricula Vitae (CV) was taken into account in the technical evaluation of the Consultant's Proposal.
 - m) "Local Currency" means the currency of the Client's country.

- n) "Non-Key Expert(s)" means an individual professional provided by the Consultant or its Subconsultant to perform the Services or any part thereof under the Contract.
- o) "Party" means the Client or the Consultant, as the case may be, and "Parties" means both of them.
- p) "SCC" means the Special Conditions of Contract by which the GCC may be amended or supplemented but not overwritten.
- q) "Services" means the work to be performed by the Consultant pursuant to the Contract, as described in Appendices A and B of the Contract.
- r) "Subconsultants" means an entity to whom/which the Consultant subcontracts any part of the Services while remaining solely liable for the execution of the Contract.

2 Relationship between the Parties

2.1 Nothing contained herein shall be construed as establishing a relationship of master and servant or of principal and agent as between the Client and the Consultant. The Consultant, subject to the Contract, has the complete charge of the Experts and Subconsultants, if any, performing the Services and shall be fully responsible for the Services performed by them or on their behalf hereunder.

3 Law governing Contract

- 3.1 The Contract, its meaning and interpretation, and the relation between the Parties shall be governed by the Applicable law.
- 4 Language
- 4.1 The Contract has been executed in the language specified in the **SCC**, which shall be the binding and controlling language for all matters relating to the meaning or interpretation of the Contract.
- 5 Headings
- 5.1 The headings shall not limit, alter or affect the meaning of the Contract.
- 6 Communications
- 6.1 Any communication required or permitted to be given or made pursuant to the Contract shall be made in writing in the language specified in Clause GCC 4. Any such notice, request or consent shall be deemed to have been given or made when delivered in person to an authorized representative of the Party to whom the communication is addressed, or when sent to such Party at the address specified in the SCC.
- 6.2 A Party may change its address for notice hereunder by giving the other Party any communication of such change to the address specified in the **SCC**.

7 Location

- 7.1 The Services shall be performed at such locations as are specified in **Appendix A** hereto and, where the location of a particular task is not so specified, at such locations, whether in the Client's country or elsewhere, as the Client may approve.
- 8 Authority of member in charge
- 8.1 In case the Consultant is a Joint Venture, the members hereby authorize the lead member specified in the **SCC** to act on their behalf in exercising all the Consultant's rights and obligations towards the Client under the Contract, including without limitation the receiving of instructions and payments from the Client.
- 9 Authorized representatives
- 9.1 Any action required or permitted to be taken, and any document required or permitted to be executed under the Contract by the

Client or the Consultant may be taken or executed by the officials specified in the **SCC**.

10 Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices, and Social and Environmental Responsibility

10.1 AFD requires compliance with its policy in regard to corrupt and fraudulent practices, social and environmental responsibility as set forth in **Attachment 1** to the GCC.

B. Commencement, Completion, Modification and Termination of Contract

11 Effectiveness of Contract

11.1 The Contract shall come into force and effect on the date (the "Effective Date") of the Client's notice to the Consultant instructing the Consultant to begin carrying out the Services. This notice shall confirm that the effectiveness conditions, if any, listed in the SCC have been met.

12 Termination of Contract for failure to become effective

12.1 If the Contract has not become effective within such time period after the date of Contract signature as specified in the SCC, either Party may, by not less than twenty two (22) days written notice to the other Party, declare the Contract to be null and void, and in the event of such a declaration by either Party, neither Party shall have any claim against the other Party with respect hereto.

13 Commencement of Services

The Consultant shall confirm availability of Key Experts and begin carrying out the Services not later than the number of days after the Effective Date specified in the **SCC**.

14 Expiration of Contrat

14.1 Unless terminated earlier pursuant to Clause GCC 19 hereof, the Contract shall expire at the end of such time period after the Effective Date as specified in the **SCC**.

15 Entire agreement

15.1 The Contract contains all covenants, stipulations and provisions agreed by the Parties. No agent or representative of either Party has authority to make, and the Parties shall not be bound by or be liable for, any statement, representation, promise or agreement not set forth herein.

16 Modifications or variations

16.1 Any modification or variation of the terms and conditions of the Contract, including any modification or variation of the scope of the Services, may only be made by written agreement between the Parties. However, each Party shall give due consideration to any Proposals for modification or variation made by the other Party.

In cases of substantial modifications or variations, the prior written consent of AFD is required.

17 Force Majeure

17.1 <u>Definition</u>:

17.1.1 For the purposes of the Contract, "Force Majeure" means an event which is beyond the reasonable control of a Party, is not foreseeable, is unavoidable, and makes a Party's performance of its obligations hereunder impossible or so impractical as reasonably to be considered impossible under the circumstances, and subject to those requirements. It includes, but is not limited to, war, riots, civil disorder, earthquake, fire, explosion, storm, flood or other adverse weather

- conditions, confiscation or any other action by government agencies.
- 17.1.2 Force Majeure shall not include (i) any event which is caused by the negligence or intentional action of a Party or such Party's Experts, Subconsultants or agents or employees, nor (ii) any event which a diligent Party could reasonably have been expected to both take into account at the time of the conclusion of the Contract, and avoid or overcome in the carrying out of its obligations hereunders.
- 17.1.3 Force Majeure shall not include insufficiency of funds or failure to make any payment required hereunder.

17.2 Non breach of Contract:

The failure of a Party to fulfill any of its obligations hereunder shall not be considered to be a breach of, or default under, the Contract insofar as such inability arises from an event of Force Majeure, provided that the Party affected by such an event has taken all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures, all with the objective of carrying out the terms and conditions of the Contract.

17.3 Measures to be taken:

- 17.3.1 A Party affected by an event of Force Majeure shall continue to perform its obligations under the Contract as far as is reasonably practical, and shall take all reasonable measures to minimize the consequences of any event of Force Majeure.
- 17.3.2 A Party affected by an event of Force Majeure shall notify the other Party of such event as soon as possible, and in any case not later than fourteen (14) calendar days following the occurrence of such event, providing evidence of the nature and cause of such event, and shall similarly give written notice of the restoration of normal conditions as soon as possible.
- 17.3.3 Any period within which a Party shall, pursuant to the Contract, complete any action or task, shall be extended for a period equal to the time during which such Party was unable to perform such action as a result of Force Maieure.
- 17.3.4 During the period of their inability to perform the Services as a result of an event of Force Majeure, the Consultant, upon instructions by the Client, shall either:
 - Cease its activities and demobilize, in which case the Consultant shall be reimbursed for additional costs they reasonably and necessarily incurred, and, if required by the Client, the costs related to the reactivation of the Services; or
 - b) Continue with the Services to the extent reasonably possible, in which case the Consultant shall continue to be paid under the terms of the Contract and be reimbursed for additional costs reasonably and necessarily incurred.

17.3.5 In the case of disagreement between the Parties as to the existence or extent of Force Majeure, the matter shall be settled according to Clauses GCC 48 and 49.

18 Suspension

18.1 The Client may, by written notice of suspension to the Consultant, suspend all payments to the Consultant hereunder if the Consultant fails to perform any of its obligations under the Contract, including the carrying out of the Services, provided that such notice of suspension (i) shall specify the nature of the failure, and (ii) shall request the Consultant to remedy such failure within a period not exceeding thirty (30) days after receipt by the Consultant of such notice of suspension.

19 Termination

The Contract may be terminated by either Party as per provisions set up below:

19.1 By the Client:

- 19.1.1 The Client may terminate the Contract in case of the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (f) of this Clause. In such an occurrence the Client shall give at least thirty (30) days' written notice of termination to the Consultant in case of the events referred to in (a) through (d); at least sixty (60) days' written notice in case of the event referred to in (e); and at least five (5) days' written notice in case of the event referred to in (f):
 - a) If the Consultant fails to remedy a failure in the performance of its obligations hereunder, as specified in a notice of suspension pursuant to Clause GCC 18;
 - b) If the Consultant becomes (or, if the Consultant consists of a Joint Venture, if any of its members becomes) insolvent or bankrupt or enter into any agreements with their creditors for relief of debt or take advantage of any law for the benefit of debtors or go into liquidation or receivership whether compulsory or voluntary;
 - c) If the Consultant fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration proceedings pursuant to Sub-Clause GCC 49.1;
 - d) If, as the result of Force Majeure, the Consultant is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) days;
 - e) If the Client, in its sole discretion and for any reason whatsoever, decides to terminate the Contract;
 - f) If the Consultant fails to confirm availability of Key Experts.
- 19.1.2 Furthermore, if the Client determines that the Consultant has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices, in competing for or in executing the Contract, then the Client is entitled, after giving fourteen (14) days written notice to the Consultant, to terminate the Consultant's employment under the Contract.

19.2 By the Consultant:

- 19.2.1 The Consultant may terminate the Contract, by not less than thirty (30) days' written notice to the Client, in case of the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (d) of this Sub-Clause:
 - a) If the Client fails to pay any money due to the Consultant pursuant to the Contract and not subject to dispute pursuant to Sub-Clause GCC 49.1 within forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice from the Consultant that such payment is overdue;
 - b) If, as the result of Force Majeure, the Consultant is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) days;
 - If the Client fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration pursuant to Clause GCC 49.1;
 - d) If the Client is in material breach of its obligations pursuant to the Contract and has not remedied the same within forty-five (45) days (or such longer period as the Consultant may have subsequently approved in writing) following the receipt by the Client of the Consultant's notice specifying such breach.

19.3 <u>Cessation of rights and obligations</u>:

Upon termination of the Contract pursuant to Clauses GCC 12 or GCC 19 hereof, or upon expiration of the Contract pursuant to Clause GCC 14, all rights and obligations of the Parties hereunder shall cease, except (i) such rights and obligations as may have accrued on the date of termination or expiration, (ii) the obligation of confidentiality set forth in Clause GCC 22, (iii) the Consultant's obligation to permit inspection, copying and auditing of their accounts and records set forth in Clause GCC 25, and (iv) any right which a Party may have under the Applicable law.

19.4 Cessation of Services:

Upon termination of the Contract by notice of either Party to the other pursuant to Sub-Clauses GCC 19.1 or GCC 19.2, the Consultant shall, immediately upon dispatch or receipt of such notice, take all necessary steps to bring the Services to a close in a prompt and orderly manner and shall make every reasonable effort to keep expenditures for this purpose to a minimum. With respect to the documents prepared by the Consultant and equipment and materials furnished by the Client, the Consultant shall proceed as provided, respectively, by Clauses GCC 27 or GCC 28.

19.5 Payment upon termination:

- 19.5.1 Upon termination of the Contract, the Client shall make the following payments to the Consultant:
 - Remuneration for Services satisfactorily performed prior to the effective date of termination, other expenses incurred and, for unit prices (time-based), reimbursable expenditures for expenditures actually

- incurred prior to the effective date of termination; and pursuant to Clause 42;
- b) In the case of termination pursuant to paragraphs (d) and (e) of Sub-Clause GCC 19.1.1, reimbursement of any reasonable cost incidental to the prompt and orderly termination of the Contract, including the cost of the return travel of the Experts.

C. Obligations of the Consultant

20 General

20.1 Standard of performance:

- 20.1.1 The Consultant shall perform the Services and carry out the Services with all due diligence, efficiency and economy, in accordance with generally accepted professional standards and practices, and shall observe sound management practices, and employ appropriate technology and safe and effective equipment, machinery, materials and methods. The Consultant shall always act, in respect of any matter relating to the Contract or to the Services, as a faithful adviser to the Client, and shall at all times support and safeguard the Client's legitimate interests in any dealings with third parties.
- 20.1.2 The Consultant shall employ and provide such qualified and experienced Experts and Subconsultants as are required to carry out the Services.
- 20.1.3 The Consultant may subcontract part of the Services to an extent and with such Key Experts and Subconsultants as may be approved in advance by the Client. Notwithstanding such approval, the Consultant shall retain full responsibility for the Services. The Consultant shall not subcontract the whole of the Services.

20.2 Law applicable to Services:

- 20.2.1 The Consultant shall perform the Services in accordance with the Contract and the Applicable law and shall take all practicable steps to ensure that any of its Experts and Subconsultants, comply with the Applicable law.
- 20.2.2 Throughout the execution of the Contract, the Consultant shall comply with the import of goods and services prohibitions in the Client's country.
- 20.2.3 The Client shall notify the Consultant in writing of relevant local customs, and the Consultant shall, after such notification, respect such customs.

21 Conflict of interests

- 21.1 The Consultant shall hold the Client's interests paramount, without any consideration for future work, and strictly avoid conflict with other assignments or their own corporate interests.
- 21.2 Consultant not to benefit from commissions, discounts, etc.:
 - 21.2.1 The payment of the Consultant pursuant to GCC F (Clauses GCC 41 through 46) shall constitute the Consultant's only payment in connection with the Contract and, subject to Sub-Clause GCC 21.1.3, the Consultant shall not accept for its own benefit any trade commission, discount or similar payment in connection

with activities pursuant to the Contract or in the discharge of its obligations hereunder, and the Consultant shall use its best efforts to ensure that any Subconsultants, as well as Experts and agents of either of them, similarly shall not receive any such additional payment.

21.2.2 Furthermore, if the Consultant, as part of the Services, has the responsibility of advising the Client on the procurement of goods, works, plants, consulting services or non-consulting services, the Consultant shall comply with the Client's applicable regulations, and shall at all times exercise such responsibility in the best interest of the Client. Any discounts or commissions obtained by the Consultant in the exercise of such procurement responsibility shall be for the account of the Client.

21.3 Consultant and affiliates not to engage in certain activities:

Unless otherwise indicated in the **SCC**, a firm that has been engaged by the Client to provide goods, works, or non-consulting services for a project, or any of its Affiliates, shall be disqualified from providing consulting services resulting from or directly related to those goods, works, or non-consulting services.

21.4 Prohibition of conflicting activities:

The Consultant shall not engage, and shall cause its Experts as well as its Subconsultants not to engage, either directly or indirectly, in any business or professional activities that would conflict with the activities assigned to them under the Contract.

21.5 Strict duty to disclose conflicting activities:

The Consultant has an obligation and shall ensure that its Experts and Subconsultants shall have an obligation to disclose any situation of actual or potential conflict that impacts their capacity to serve the best interest of their Client, or that may reasonably be perceived as having this effect. Failure to disclose such situations may lead to the termination of its Contract.

22 Confidentiality

- 22.1 Except with the prior written approval of the Client, the Consultant and the Experts shall not at any time communicate to any person or entity any confidential information acquired in the course of the Services, nor shall the Consultant and the Experts make public the recommendations formulated in the course of, or as a result of, the Services.
- 23 Liability of the Consultant
- 23.1 Subject to additional provisions, if any, set forth in the **SCC**, the Consultant's liability under the Contract shall be as determined under the Applicable law.

24 Insurance to be taken out by the Consultant

24.1 The Consultant (i) shall take out and maintain, and shall cause any Subconsultants to take out and maintain, at its (or the Subconsultants', as the case may be) own cost but on terms and conditions approved by the Client, insurance against the risks, and for the coverage specified in the SCC, and (ii) at the Client's request, shall provide evidence to the Client showing that such insurance has been taken out and maintained and that the current premiums therefore have been paid. The Consultant shall ensure that such insurance is in place prior to commencing the Services as stated in Clause GCC 13.

25 Accounting, inspection and auditing

- 25.1 The Consultant shall keep, and shall make all reasonable efforts to cause its Subconsultants to keep, accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the Services in such form and detail as will clearly identify relevant time changes and costs.
- 25.2 The Consultant shall permit and shall cause its Subconsultants to permit, AFD and/or persons appointed by AFD to inspect the Site and/or all accounts and records relating to the performance of the Contract and the submission of the Proposal to provide the Services, and to have such accounts and records audited by auditors appointed by AFD if requested by AFD. The Consultant's attention is drawn to Clause GCC 10 which provides, inter alia, that acts intended to materially impede the exercise of AFD's inspection and audit rights provided for under this Sub-Clause GCC 25.2 constitute a prohibited practice subject to Contract termination.

26 Reporting obligations

26.1 The Consultant shall submit to the Client the reports and documents specified in **Appendix A**, in the form, in the numbers and within the time periods set forth in the said Appendix.

27 Proprietary rights of the Client in reports and records

- 27.1 Unless otherwise indicated in the **SCC**, all reports and relevant data and information such as maps, diagrams, plans, databases, other documents and software, supporting records or material compiled or prepared by the Consultant for the Client in the course of the Services shall be confidential and become and remain the absolute property of the Client. The Consultant shall, not later than upon termination or expiration of the Contract, deliver all such documents to the Client, together with a detailed inventory thereof. The Consultant may retain a copy of such documents, data and/or software but shall not use the same for purposes unrelated to the Contract without prior written approval of the Client.
- 27.2 If license agreements are necessary or appropriate between the Consultant and third parties for purposes of development of the plans, drawings, specifications, designs, databases, other documents and software, the Consultant shall obtain the Client's prior written approval to such agreements, and the Client shall be entitled at its discretion to require recovering the expenses related to the development of the program(s) concerned. Other restrictions about the future use of these documents and software, if any, shall be specified in the SCC.

28 Equipment, vehicles and materials

- 28.1 Equipment, vehicles and materials made available to the Consultant by the Client, or purchased by the Consultant wholly or partly with funds provided by the Client, shall be the property of the Client and shall be marked accordingly. Upon termination or expiration of the Contract, the Consultant shall make available to the Client an inventory of such equipment, vehicles and materials and shall dispose of such equipment, vehicles and materials in accordance with the Client's instructions. While in possession of such equipment, vehicles and materials, the Consultant, unless otherwise instructed by the Client in writing, shall insure them at the expense of the Client in an amount equal to their full replacement value.
- 28.2 Any equipment or materials brought by the Consultant or its Experts into the Client's country for the use either for the project or personal use shall remain the property of the Consultant or the Experts concerned, as applicable.

D. Consultant's Experts and Subconsultants

29 Description of Key Experts

- 29.1 The title, agreed job description, minimum qualification and timeinput estimates to carry out the Services of each of the Consultant's Key Experts are described in **Appendix B**.
- 29.2 In case of unit prices (time-based) and if required to comply with the provisions of Sub-clause GCC 20.1, adjustments with respect to the estimated time-input of Key Experts set forth in Appendix B may be made by the Consultant by a written notice to the Client, provided (i) that such adjustments shall not alter the original time-input estimates for any individual by more than 10% or one week, whichever is larger; and (ii) that the aggregate of such adjustments shall not cause payments under the Contract to exceed the ceilings set forth in Sub-Clause GCC 41.1.
- In case of unit prices (time-based) and if additional work is required beyond the scope of the Services specified in **Appendix A**, the estimated time-input for the Key Experts may be increased by written agreement between the Client and the Consultant. In case where payments under the Contract exceed the ceilings set forth in Sub-Clause GCC 41.1, the Parties shall sign a Contract amendment.

30 Replacement of Key Experts

- 30.1 Except as the Client may otherwise agree in writing, no changes shall be made in the Key Experts.
- 30.2 Notwithstanding the above, the substitution of Key Experts during Contract execution may be considered only based on the Consultant's written request and due to circumstances outside the reasonable control of the Consultant, including but not limited to death or medical incapacity. In such case, the Consultant shall forthwith provide as a replacement, a person of equivalent or better qualifications and experience, and at the same rate of remuneration.

31 Approval of additional Key Experts

- 31.1 If during execution of the Contract, additional Key Experts are required to carry out the Services, the Consultant shall submit to the Client a copy of their Curricula Vitae (CVs) for review and approval. If the Client does not object in writing (stating the reasons for the objection) within twenty two (22) days from the date of receipt of such CVs, the additional Key Experts shall be deemed approved by the Client.
- 31.2 In case of unit price (time-based) Contract, the rate of remuneration payable to such new additional Key Experts shall be based on the rates for other Key Experts position which require similar qualifications and experience.

32 Removal of Experts or Subconsultants

- If the Client finds that any of the Experts or Subconsultant has committed serious misconduct or has been charged with having committed a criminal action, or if the Client determines that one of the Consultant's Experts or Subconsultants have engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practice while performing the Services, the Consultant shall, at the Client's written request, provide a replacement.
- 32.2 In the event that any of the Key Experts, Non-Key Experts or Subconsultants is found by the Client to be incompetent or incapable in discharging assigned duties, the Client, specifying the grounds therefore, may request the Consultant to provide a replacement.

- 32.3 Any replacement of the removed Experts or Subconsultants shall possess better qualifications and experience and shall be acceptable to the Client.
- 33 Replacement / removal of Experts Impact on payments
- 33.1 In case of unit price (time-based) Contract, except as the Client may otherwise agree, (i) the Consultant shall bear all additional travel and other costs arising out of or incidental to any removal and/or replacement, and (ii) the remuneration to be paid for any of the Experts provided as a replacement shall not exceed the remuneration which would have been payable to the Experts replaced or removed.
- 33.2 In case of lump-sum Contract, the Consultant shall bear all costs arising out or incidental to any removal and/or replacement of such Experts.
- 34 Working hours, overtime, leave, etc. (time-based Contract only)
- Working hours and holidays for Experts are set forth in **Appendix A**. To account for travel time to/from the Client's country, Experts carrying out Services inside the Client's country shall be deemed to have commenced or finished work in respect of the Services such number of days specified in **Appendix A** before their arrival in, or after their departure from, the Client's country.
- 34.2 The Experts shall neither be entitled to be paid for overtime nor to take paid sick leave or vacation leave except as specified in **Appendix A**, and the Consultant's remuneration shall be deemed to cover these items.
- 34.3 Any taking of leave by the Experts shall be subject to the prior approval of the Consultant who shall ensure that absence for leave purposes will not delay the progress and or impact an adequate supervision of the Services.

E. Obligations of the Client

- 35 Assistance and exemption
- 35.1 Unless otherwise specified in the **SCC**, the Client shall use its best efforts to:
 - Assist the Consultant with obtaining work permits and such other documents as shall be necessary to enable the Consultant to perform the Services;
 - b) Assist the Consultant with promptly obtaining, for the Experts and, if appropriate, their eligible dependents, all necessary entry and exit visas, residence permits, exchange permits and any other documents required for their stay in the Client's country while carrying out the Services under the Contract:
 - Facilitate prompt clearance through customs of any property required for the Services and of the personal effects of the Experts and their eligible dependents;
 - d) Issue to officials, agents and representatives of the government all such instructions and information as may be necessary or appropriate for the prompt and effective implementation of the Services;
 - e) Assist the Consultant and the Experts and any Subconsultants employed by the Consultant for the Services with obtaining exemption from any requirement to register or obtain any permit to practice their profession or to establish themselves either individually or as a legal

- entity in the Client's country according to the Applicable Law in the Client's country;
- f) Assist the Consultant, any Subconsultants and the Experts of either of them with obtaining the privilege, pursuant to the Applicable law in the Client's country, of bringing into the Client's country reasonable amounts of Foreign Currency for the purposes of the Services or for the personal use of the Experts and of withdrawing any such amounts as may be earned therein by the Experts in the execution of the Services:
- g) Provide to the Consultant any such other assistance as may be specified in the **SCC**.

36 Access to projectsite

36.1 The Client warrants that the Consultant shall have, free of charge, unimpeded access to the project site in respect of which access is required for the performance of the Services. The Client will be responsible for any damage to the project site or any property thereon resulting from such access and will indemnify the Consultant and each of the Experts in respect of liability for any such damage, unless such damage is caused by the willful default or negligence of the Consultant or any Subconsultants or the Experts.

37 Change in the Applicable Law related to taxes and duties

37.1 If, after the date of the Contract, there is any change in the Applicable Law in the Client's country with respect to taxes and duties which increases or decreases the cost incurred by the Consultant in performing the Services, then the remuneration and other expenses otherwise payable to the Consultant under the Contract shall be increased or decreased accordingly by agreement between the Parties hereto, and corresponding adjustments shall be made to the ceiling amounts specified in Sub-Clause GCC 41.1.

38 Services, facilities and property of the Client

- 38.1 The Client shall make available to the Consultant and the Experts, for the purposes of the Services and free of any charge, the services, facilities and property described in the Terms of Reference (**Appendix A**) at the times and in the manner specified in the above mentioned **Appendix A**.
- 38.2 In case that such services, facilities and property shall not be made available to the Consultant as and when specified in **Appendix A**, the Parties shall agree on (i) any time extension that it may be appropriate to grant to the Consultant for the performance of the Services, (ii) the manner in which the Consultant shall procure any such services, facilities and property from other sources, and (iii) the additional payments, if any, to be made to the Consultant as a result thereof pursuant to Clause GCC 41.

39 Counterpart personnel

- 39.1 The Client shall make available to the Consultant free of charge such professional and support counterpart personnel, to be nominated by the Client with the Consultant's advice, if specified in **Appendix A**.
- 39.2 If counterpart personnel are not provided by the Client to the Consultant as and when specified in **Appendix A**, the Client and the Consultant shall agree on (i) how the affected part of the Services shall be carried out, and (ii) the additional payments, if

- any, to be made by the Client to the Consultant as a result thereof pursuant to Clause GCC 41.
- 39.3 Professional and support counterpart personnel, excluding Client's liaison personnel, shall work under the exclusive direction of the Consultant. If any member of the counterpart personnel fails to perform adequately any work assigned to such member by the Consultant that is consistent with the position occupied by such member, the Consultant may request the replacement of such member, and the Client shall not unreasonably refuse to act upon such request.

40 Paymentobligation

40.1 In consideration of the Services performed by the Consultant under the Contract, the Client shall make such payments to the Consultant and in such manner as provided by GCC F below.

F. Payment to the Consultant

- 41 Ceiling amount (time-based) or Contract price (lump-sum)
- 41.1 In case of unit price (time-based) Contract, an estimate of the cost of the Services is set forth in **Appendix C** (Contract Price(s)). Payments under the Contract shall not exceed the ceilings in Foreign Currency and in Local Currency specified in the **SCC**. For any payments in excess of the ceilings, an amendment to the Contract shall be signed by the Parties referring to the provision of the Contract that evokes such amendment.
- 41.2 In case of a lump-sum Contract, the Contract price is fixed and is set forth in the **SCC**. The Contract price breakdown is provided in **Appendix C**. Any change to the Contract price can be made only if the Parties have agreed to the revised scope of Services pursuant to Clause GCC 16 and have amended in writing the Terms of Reference in **Appendix A**.
- 42 Remuneration and reimbursable expenses (unit price, time-based only)
- 42.1 The Client shall pay to the Consultant (i) remuneration that shall be determined on the basis of the time actually spent by each Expert in the performance of the Services after the commencement date of the Services or after any other date as the Parties shall agree in writing; and (ii) other expenses including reimbursable expenses that are actually and reasonably incurred by the Consultant in the performance of the Services.
- 42.2 All payments shall be at the rates set forth in **Appendix C**.
- 42.3 Unless the **SCC** provides for the price adjustment of the remuneration rates, said remuneration shall be fixed for the duration of the Contract.
- 42.4 The remuneration rates shall cover: (i) such salaries and allowances as the Consultant shall have agreed to pay to the Experts as well as factors for social charges and overheads (bonuses or other means of profit-sharing shall not be allowed as an element of overheads), (ii) the cost of backstopping by home office staff not included in the Experts' list in **Appendix B**, (iii) the Consultant's profit, and (iv) any other cost unless otherwise specified in the **SCC**.

43 Taxes and duties

- 43.1 The Consultant, Subconsultants and Experts are responsible for meeting any and all tax liabilities arising out of the Contract unless it is stated otherwise in the **SCC**.
- 43.2 As an exception to the above and as stated in the **SCC**, all local identifiable indirect taxes (itemized and finalized at Contract

negotiations) are reimbursed to the Consultant or are paid by the Client on behalf of the Consultant.

- 44 Currency of payment
- 44.1 Any payment under the Contract shall be made in the currency(ies) of the Contract.
- 45 Mode of billing and payment
- 45.1 Billings and payments in respect of the Services shall be made as follows:
 - a) Advance payment: Within the number of days as specified in the SCC after the Effective Date, the Client shall pay to the Consultant an advance payment as specified in the SCC. Unless otherwise indicated in the SCC, an advance payment shall be made against the submission of a bank guarantee acceptable to the Client in an amount (or amounts) and in a currency (or currencies) specified in the SCC. Such guarantee (i) is to remain effective until the advance payment has been fully set off, and (ii) is to be in the form set forth in Appendix D, or in any other form that the Client shall have approved in writing. The advance payments will be set off by the Client in installments as specified in the SCC until the said advance payments have been fully set off.
 - The itemized invoices (unit price-time-based): As soon as practicable and not later than fifteen (15) days after the end of each calendar month during the period of the Services, or after the end of each time interval otherwise indicated in the **SCC**, the Consultant shall submit to the Client, in duplicate, itemized invoices, accompanied by the receipts or other appropriate supporting documents, of the amounts payable pursuant to Clauses GCC 44 and GCC 45 for such interval, or for any other period indicated in the SCC. Separate invoices shall be submitted for expenses incurred in Foreign Currency and in Local Currency. Each invoice shall show remuneration and other expenses (including reimbursable expenses) separately. The Client shall pay the Consultant's invoices within sixty (60) days from the receipt by the Client of such itemized invoices and of the supporting documents. Only the portion of an invoice that is not satisfactorily supported may be withheld from payment. Should any discrepancy be found to exist between actual payment and costs authorized, the Client may add or subtract the difference from any subsequent payments.
 - c) The lump-sum Installment payments: The Client shall pay the Consultant within sixty (60) days after the receipt by the Client of the deliverable(s) and the cover invoice for the related lump-sum installment payment. The payment can be withheld if the Client does not approve the submitted deliverable(s) as satisfactory in which case the Client shall provide comments to the Consultant within the same sixty (60) days period. The Consultant shall thereupon promptly make any necessary corrections, and thereafter the foregoing process shall be repeated.
 - d) <u>The final payment</u>: The final payment under this Clause shall be made only after the final report and a final invoice, identified as such, shall have been submitted by the Consultant and approved as satisfactory by the Client. The Services shall be deemed completed and finally accepted by

the Client and the final report and final invoice shall be deemed approved by the Client as satisfactory ninety (90) calendar days after receipt of the final report and final invoice by the Client unless the Client, within such ninety (90) calendar day period, gives written notice to the Consultant specifying in detail deficiencies in the Services, the final report or final invoice. The Consultant shall thereupon promptly make any necessary corrections, and thereafter the foregoing process shall be repeated. Any amount that the Client has paid or has caused to be paid in accordance with this Clause in excess of the amounts payable in accordance with the provisions of the Contract shall be reimbursed by the Consultant to the Client within thirty (30) days after receipt by Consultant of notice thereof. Such claim for reimbursement shall be made by the Client within twelve (12) calendar months after receipt by the Client of the final report and the final invoice that the Client has approved in accordance with the above.

- e) All payments under the Contract shall be made to the accounts of the Consultant specified in the SCC.
- f) With the exception of the final payment under (d) above, payments neither constitute acceptance of the Services nor relieve the Consultant of any obligations hereunder.

46 Interest on delayed payments and damages

- 46.1 <u>Interest on delayed payments</u>: If the Client had delayed payments beyond fifteen (15) days after the due date stated in Sub-Clause GCC 45.1 (b) or (c), interest shall be paid to the Consultant on any amount due by, not paid on, such due date for each day of delay at the annual rate stated in the **SCC**.
- 46.2 <u>Damages</u>: If the Consultant fails to comply with the Contract requirements, the Client shall be entitled to apply damages as stated in the **SCC**. The total amount of the damages shall not exceed 10% of the Contract amount

G. Fairness and Good Faith

47 Good faith

47.1 The Parties undertake to act in good faith with respect to each other's rights under the Contract and to adopt all reasonable measures to ensure the realization of the objectives of the Contract.

H. Settlement of Disputes

48 Amicable Settlement

- 48.1 The Parties shall seek to resolve any dispute amicably by mutual consultation.
- 48.2 If either Party objects to any action or inaction of the other Party, the objecting Party may file a written Notice of Dispute to the other Party providing in detail the basis of the dispute. The Party receiving the Notice of Dispute will consider it and respond in writing within fourteen (14) days from receipt. If that Party fails to respond within fourteen (14) days, or the dispute cannot be amicably settled within fourteen (14) days from the response of that Party, Sub-Clause GCC 49.1 shall apply.

49 Dispute resolution

49.1 Any dispute between the Parties arising under or related to the Contract that cannot be settled amicably may be referred to by either Party to the adjudication/arbitration in accordance with the provisions specified in the **SCC**.

ATTACHMENT 1: AFD Policy - Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices - Environmental and Social Responsibility

1. Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

The Contracting Authority and the suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants must observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement process and performance of the contract. The Contracting Authority means the Purchaser, the Employer, the Client, as the case may be, for the procurement of goods, works, plants, consulting services or non-consulting services.

By signing the Statement of Integrity the suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants declare that (i) "it did not engage in any practice likely to influence the contract award process to the Contracting Authority's detriment, and that it did not and will not get involved in any anti-competitive practice", and that (ii) "the procurement process and the performance of the contract did not and shall not give rise to any act of corruption or fraud".

Moreover, AFD requires including in the Procurement Documents and AFD-financed contracts a provision requiring that suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants (whichever applicable) will permit AFD to inspect their accounts and records relating to the procurement process and performance of the AFD-financed contract, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by AFD.

AFD reserves the right to take any action it deems appropriate to check that these ethics rules are observed and reserves, in particular, the rights to:

- a) Reject a proposal for a contract award if it is established that during the selection process the bidder or consultant that is recommended for the award has been convicted of corruption, directly or by means of an agent, or has engaged in fraud or anti-competitive practices in view of being awarded the Contract:
- b) Declare misprocurement when it is established that, at any time, the Contracting Authority, the suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants their representatives have engaged in acts of corruption, fraud or anti-competitive practices during the procurement process or performance of the contract without the Contracting Authority having taken appropriate action in due time satisfactory to AFD to remedy the situation, including by failing to inform AFD at the time they knew of such practices.

AFD defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:

- a) Corruption of a Public Officer means:
 - The act of promising, offering or giving to a Public Officer, directly or indirectly, an undue advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person¹ or entity, for such Public Officer to act or refrain from acting in his official capacity; or
 - The act by which a Public Officer solicits or accepts, directly or indirectly, an undue advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person or entity, for such Public Officer to act or refrain from acting in his official capacity.
- b) A Public Officer shall be construed as meaning:
 - Any person who holds a legislative, executive, administrative or judicial mandate (within the country of the Contracting Authority) regardless of whether that natural Person was nominated or elected, regardless of the permanent or temporary, paid or unpaid nature of the position and regardless of the hierarchical level the natural Person occupies;
 - Any other natural Person who performs a public function, including for a State institution or a State-owned company, or who provides a public service;

Means any Person whether natural or legal, firm, company, corporation, government, state or state agency or any association, or group of two or more of the foregoing (whether or not having separate legal status).

- Any other natural Person defined as a Public Officer by the national laws of the country of the Contracting Authority.
- c) Corruption of a Private Person² means:
 - The act of promising, offering or giving to any Private Person, directly or indirectly, an undue advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person or entity, for such Private Person to perform or refrain from performing any act in breach of its legal, contractual or professional obligations; or;
 - The act by which any Private Person solicits or accepts, directly or indirectly, an undue advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person or entity, for such Private Person to perform or refrain from performing any act in breach of its legal, contractual or professional obligations.
- d) Fraud means any dishonest conduct (act or omission), whether or not it constitutes a criminal offence, deliberately intended to deceive others, to intentionally conceal items, to violate or vitiate consent, to circumvent legal or regulatory requirements and/or to violate internal rules in order to obtain illegitimate profit.
- e) Anti-competitive practices mean:
 - Any concerted or implied practices which have as their object or effect the prevention, restriction or distortion of competition within a marketplace, especially where they (i) limit access to the marketplace or free exercise of competition by other undertakings, (ii) prevent free, competition-driven price determination by artificially causing price increases or decreases, (iii) restrict or control production, markets, investments or technical progress; or (iv) divide up market shares or sources of supply;
 - Any abuse by one undertaking or a group of undertakings which hold a dominant position on an internal market or on a substantial part of it;
 - Any practice whereby prices are quoted or set unreasonably low, the object of which is to eliminate an undertaking or any of its products from a market or to prevent it from entering the market.

2. Environmental and Social Responsibility

In order to promote sustainable development, AFD seeks to ensure that internationally recognised environmental and social standards are complied with. Suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants for AFD-financed contracts shall consequently undertake in the Statement of Integrity to:

- a) Comply with and ensure that all their subcontractors or subconsultants comply with international environmental and labour standards, consistent with applicable law and regulations in the country of implementation of the contract, including the fundamental conventions of the International Labour Organisation (ILO) and international environmental treaties;
- b) Implement environmental and social risks mitigation measures when specified in the environmental and social management plan (ESMP) provided by the Contracting Authority.

² Means any natural Person other than a Public Officer.

ATTACHMENT 2: Eligibility Criteria

Eligibility in AFD-Financed Procurement

- 1. Financing allocated by AFD to a Contracting Authority has been entirely untied since 1st January 2002. To the exception of any equipment or any sector which is subject to an embargo by the United Nations, the European Union or France, all goods, works, plants, consulting services and non-consulting services are eligible for AFD financing regardless of the country of origin of the supplier, contractor, subcontractor, consultant or subconsultant inputs or resources used in the implementation processes. The Contracting Authority means the Purchaser, the Employer, the Client, as the case may be, for the procurement of goods, works, plants, consulting services or non-consulting services.
- 2. Natural or legal Persons¹ (including all members of a joint venture or any of their suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants) shall not be awarded an AFD-financed contract if, on the date of submission of an application, a bid or a proposal, or on the date of award of a contract, they:
 - 2.1 Are bankrupt or being wound up or ceasing their activities, are having their activities administered by the courts, have entered into receivership, or are in any analogous situation arising from a similar procedure;

2.2 Have been:

- a) convicted, within the past five years by a court decision, which has the force of res judicata in the country where the contract is implemented, of fraud, corruption or of any other offense committed during a procurement process or performance of a contract, unless they provide supporting information together with their Statement of Integrity (Form available as Appendix to the Application, Bid or Proposal Submission Form) which shows that this conviction is not relevant in the context of the Contract;
- b) subject to an administrative sanction within the past five years by the European Union or by the competent authorities of the country where they are constituted, for fraud, corruption or for any other offense committed during a procurement process or performance of a contract, unless they provide supporting information together with their Statement of Integrity (Form available as Appendix to the Application, Bid or Proposal Submission Form) which shows that this sanction is not relevant in the context of the Contract;
- convicted, within the past five years by a court decision, which has the force of res judicata, of fraud, corruption or of any other offense committed during the procurement process or performance of an AFD-financed contract;
- 2.3 Are listed for financial sanctions by the United Nations, the European Union and/or France for the purposes of fight-against-terrorist financing or threat to international peace and security;
- 2.4 Have been subject within the past five years to a contract termination fully settled against them for significant or persistent failure to comply with their contractual obligations during contract performance, unless this termination was challenged and dispute resolution is still pending or has not confirmed a full settlement against them;
- 2.5 Have not fulfilled their fiscal obligations regarding payments of taxes in accordance with the legal provisions of either the country where they are constituted or the Contracting Authority's country;

Means any Person whether natural or legal, firm, company, corporation, government, state or state agency or any association, or group of two or more of the foregoing (whether or not having separate legal status).

- 2.6 Are subject to an exclusion decision of the World Bank and are listed on the website http://www.worldbank.org/debarr, unless they provide supporting information together with their Statement of Integrity (Form available as Appendix to the Application, Bid or Proposal Submission Form) which shows that this exclusion is not relevant in the context of the Contract;
- 2.7 Have created false documents or committed misrepresentation in documentation requested by the Contracting Authority as part of the procurement process of the Contract.
- 3. State-owned entities may compete only if they can establish that they (i) are legally and financially autonomous, and (ii) operate under commercial law. To be eligible, a state-owned entity shall establish to AFD's satisfaction, through all relevant documents, including its Charter and other information AFD may request, that it: (i) is a legal entity separate from their state (ii) does not currently receive substantial subsidies or budget support; (iii) operates like any commercial enterprise, and, inter alia, is not obliged to pass on its surplus to their state, can acquire rights and liabilities, borrow funds and be liable for repayment of its debts, and can be declared bankrupt.

III - SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract
1.1(a) and 3.1: Applicable law	The Contract shall be construed in accordance with the law of the Republic of India.
1.1(q): Services	As stated in Terms of Reference.
4.1: Language	The language is: English.
6.1 and 6.2:	The addresses are:
Communications	Client:
	Project Director, Project Management Unit, RFBDP; Tel: +91-141-2709101/5199654
	Attention: Project Director, RFBDP
	Email: rfbdp.afd@gmail.com
	Consultant:
	Attention:
	Fax:
	Email (where permitted):
8.1: Authority of member in charge	[Note: If the Consultant consists only of one entity, state "N/A"; OR
	If the Consultant is a Joint Venture consisting of more than one entity, the name of the JV member whose address is specified in Sub-Clause SCC 6.1 should be inserted here.]
	The Lead Member on behalf of the JV is:
	[insert name of the member]
9.1: Authorized	The Authorized Representatives are:
representatives	For the Client: Project Director, RFBDP
	For the Consultant:[name, title]
10.1 Security methodology	Point 5. N.A.
11.1: Effectiveness of Contract	The Contract shall come into force and effective on the date of signing of the Contract by the Client and the Consultants.
12.1: Termination of Contract for failure to become effective	Not applicable.
13.1: Commencement of Services	Commencement of Services: The number of days shall be 15 (fifteen) calendar days.

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract
14.1: Expiration of Contract	The time period shall be: The time period shall be for period of 04 months after the date of effectiveness. The duration of the consultancy may be further extended by 03 months by the client with mutual agreement of the parties or co-terminus with the project duration.
18.2: New Sub-Clause -	This Article is applicable if and only if terms of reference - security are included in the Contract.
Suspension or termination on the grounds of the security of the Consultant's Experts	If it considers that the physical integrity of its Experts, in connection with the performance of the Contract, is seriously and imminently threatened, the Consultant shall have full discretion to decide, without prior notice, to demobilise its Experts from the area where the Contract is performed and/or the dangerous area, and may immediately suspend all or part of the performance of the Contract. The Consultant shall promptly inform the Client.
	The Consultant shall, within a maximum period of seven (7) days from its decision, provide written proof to the Client that its decision complies with the terms of the first paragraph above. It shall specify the reasons for its decision, the foreseeable consequences for the Contract, the measures proposed to mitigate these consequences and the costs resulting from this suspension and/or demobilisation.
	If the Client disputes the justification submitted by the Consultant for its decision, it shall give notice of its position, in writing, stating its reasons, within a maximum period of fourteen (14) days.
	Except in the event of a dispute, the Client shall reimburse, within a reasonable limit, the direct costs resulting from such suspension, demobilisation and/or remobilisation of the Consultant's Experts, it being agreed that the amount of the reimbursable expenses and the repayment procedures shall be jointly agreed between the Parties.
	The Consultant shall continue to perform, to the fullest extent possible, its obligations under the Contract and take all reasonable measures to mitigate the consequences of any demobilisation and possible suspension of the services. The Client and the Consultant shall discuss such measures in order to reach an agreement on the adjustments to be made to the continuation of the Services.
	In the event the Services are resumed, the term thereof shall be extended by an amendment in accordance with Clause 16 above, for a period equivalent to the duration of the suspension.
	If the suspension period exceeds sixty (60) consecutive days from the date of effective suspension notified by the Consultant, the Contract may be terminated by either Party under Sub-Clauses 19.1.1(d) or 19.2(b). In such case, Sub-Clause 19.5(b) shall apply.
19.2	Power of attorney will also include autherization letter form person authorized to issue such orders.
20.2: Law applicable to Services	The Consultant commits to meet the AFD's eligibility criteria as listed under Attachment 2 of the General Conditions of Contract. This undertaking also applies to the Experts and Subconsultants.
20.3: New Sub-Clause - Permanent establishment	In the event of a legal or regulatory obligation for the Consultant to have a permanent establishment in the Client's country for the performance of the Contract, the Consultant shall provide the Client with proof of existence, or at least proof of process commencement for creating or registering such a permanent establishment in the Client's country, and the legal relationship with the Consultant, within thirty (30) days of the signing of the Agreement. At the end of the creation or registration process, the Consultant shall provide the Client with proof of the existence of such a permanent establishment.

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract		
	The Consultant shall be authorized, during the execution of the Contract, if the legal constraints or local regulations require it, to create or modify the existing Joint Venture, by integrating an existing local subsidiary or by creating a new one by the Consultant (or one of the members of the Joint Venture), without additional cost for the Client. An amendment to the Contract shall be used to formalize these actions.		
23.1: Liability of the Consultant		owing limitation of the Consultant's Liability towards the Client can be to the Contract's negotiations:	
	Limitatio	on of the Consultant's Liability towards the Client:	
	a) Except in the case of gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Consultant or on the part of any person or a firm acting of the Consultant in carrying out the Services, the Consultant to damage caused by the Consultant to the Client's shall not be liable to the Client:		
		(i) For any indirect or consequential loss or damage; and	
		(ii) For any direct loss or damage that exceeds <i>one</i> times the total Contract amount.	
	b)	This limitation of liability shall not:	
		(i) Affect the Consultant's liability, if any, for damage to Third Parties caused by the Consultant or any person or firm acting on behalf of the Consultant in carrying out the Services;	
		(ii) Be construed as providing the Consultant with any limitation or exclusion from liability which is prohibited by the Applicable law."]	
24.1: Insurance to	The ins	urance coverage against the risks shall be as follows:	
be taken out by the Consultant	,	Professional liability insurance, with a minimum coverage of [insert amount (and currency) which should be not less than the total Contract amount];	
		Third Party liability insurance, with a minimum coverage of [insert amount and currency or state "in accordance with the Applicable law"];	
	,	Client's liability and workers' compensation insurance for the Consultant's Experts and Subconsultants in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Applicable law in the Client's country, as well as, with respect to such Experts, any such life, health, accident, travel or other insurance as may be appropriate.	
27.1: Proprietary rights in reports and records	No exc	eptions to proprietary rights provision	
amount (time- based) or taxe		ntract price (lump-sum)is: [insert amount and y for each currency] [indicate: inclusive or exclusive]of local indirect	
Contract price (lump-sum)	[In the case of a conditional phase; indicate separately the amount of t phase and conditional phase.]		
	The amount of such taxes is: [insert the amount as finalized at the Contract's negotiations on the basis of the estimates provided by the Consultant in form FIN-2 of the Consultant's financial Proposal.]		
42.1: Remuneration and reimbursable expenses (unit	N.A.		

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract	
price, time-based only)		
42.3: Price adjustment	Price adjustment on the remuneration do not apply. It should be included in the bid amount.	
	Payments for remuneration made in [Local] Currency shall be adjusted as follows:	
	 Remuneration paid in Foreign Currency on the basis of the rates set forth in Appendix C shall be adjusted every 12 months (and the first time, with effect for the remuneration earned in the 13th calendar month after the date of the Contract Effectiveness date) by applying the following formula: 	
	$R_f = R_{fo} \times \frac{I_f}{I_{fo}} R_f \left\{ or R_f = R_{fo} \times \left[0.1 + 0.9 \frac{I_f}{I_{fo}} \right] \right\}$	
	Where:	
	$ullet$ R_f is the adjusted remuneration,	
	 R_{fo} is the remuneration payable on the basis of the remuneration rates (Appendix C) in Foreign Currency, 	
	 I_f is the official index for salaries in the country of the Foreign Currency for the first month for which the adjustment is supposed to have effect; and 	
	• I_{fo} is the official index for salaries in the country of the Foreign Currency for the month of the date of the Contract.	
	The Consultant shall state here the name, source institution, and any necessary identifying characteristics of the official index for salaries corresponding to I _f and I _{fo} in the adjustment formula for remuneration paid in Foreign Currency: [Insert the name, source institution, and necessary identifying characteristics of the index for Foreign Currency].	
	2. Remuneration paid in Local Currency pursuant to the rates set forth in Appendix C shall be adjusted every [insert number] months, starting from the [insert ordinal number] calendar month after the signature date of the Contract, by applying the following formula:	
	$R_l = R_{lo} \times \frac{I_l}{I_{lo}} \{ or \ R_l = R_{lo} \times \left[0.1 + 0.9 \frac{I_l}{I_{lo}} \right] \}$	
	Where:	
	$ullet$ R_l is the adjusted remuneration,	
	 R_{lo} is the remuneration payable on the basis of the remuneration rates (Appendix C) in Local Currency, 	
	$ullet$ I_l is the official index for salaries in the Client's country for the first month for which the adjustment is to have effect; and	
	• I_{lo} is the official index for salaries in the Client's country for the month of the date of the Contract.	
	The Client shall state here the name, source institution, and any necessary identifying characteristics of the official index for salaries corresponding to I ₁ and I ₁₀ in the adjustment formula for remuneration paid in Local Currency: [Insert the name, source institution, and necessary identifying characteristics of the index for Local Currency].	

43.1 and 43.2: Taxes and duties

Payment of the taxes, duties and fees applicable to the Contract are specified in the table below.

[Select the applicable options. This table must be completed in accordance with the Instructions to Consultants ITC 16.3]

		Payment Term [mark the applicable boxes]			
Applicable taxes, duties and fees		a) Exemption from payment	b) Payment by the Consultant	c) Direct payment by the Client on behalf of the Consultant	
Value Added Tax (VAT) or equivalent					
Invoices from the Consultant/Joint Venture member					
based in the Client's country					
Invoices from the Consultant/Joint Venture member					
based outside the Client's country					
Withholding tax on the Consultant's invoices based	outside	the Client	's country	/	
Invoices from the Consultant/Joint Venture member					
based outside the Client's country					
Contract Registration Fees ⁽¹⁾	1				
Contract registration fees					
Customs duties		1			
Customs duties relating to equipment, materials and					
supplies imported and paid for in the performance of	(2)				
the Services, and considered as the property of the					
Client					

In the event of direct payment of one or more taxes, duties and fees by the Client on behalf of the Consultant, in accordance with the table above, the Client shall provide the Consultant with proof of payment, or equivalent proof for each payment, within thirty (30) days of the Consultant's written request.

In case of exemption applicable to the Contract:

- 1. The Client shall provide the Consultant with proof of exemption, or equivalent proof within thirty (30) days of the signing of the Contract.
- 2. This exemption also applies to:

[check the appropriate box(es),in accordance with ITC 16.3]

- ☐ Invoices of Subconsultants based in the Client's country;
- ☐ Invoices of Subconsultants based outside the Client's country;
- Any equipment, materials and supplies brought into the Client's country by the Consultant or its Subconsultants for the purpose of carrying out the Services and which, after having been brought into such territories, will be subsequently withdrawn by them;
- ☐ Any property brought into the Client's country by the Consultant, its Subconsultants, their Expertsand their dependents (other than nationals or permanent residents of the Client's country), for their personal use, and which will subsequently be withdrawn by them upon their respective departure from the Client's country, provided that:

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract
	(i) The Consultant, its Subconsultants and their Experts shall comply with the applicable customs procedures in importing any property into the Client's country; and
	(ii) If the Consultant, its Subconsultants and their Experts do not withdraw but dispose of any property in the Client's country upon which customs duties and taxes have been exempted, the Consultant, its Subconsultants and their Experts, as the case may be, (a) shall bear such customs duties and taxes in compliance with the regulations of the Client's country, or (b) shall reimburse them to the Client if they were paid by the Clientat the time the said property was brought into the Client's country.
	(1) Add a line here if there are other similar fees, such as fee to the regulatory body for public procurement, or equivalent. (2) The Consultant will refer to the rates in effect in the Client's country by category of equipment, materials and supplies.
45.1(a): Mode of billing	The following provisions shall apply to the advance payment and the advance bank payment guarantee:
and payment - Advance payment	An advance payment of [X%] of the Contract price or ceiling respectively in Foreign Currency and in Local Currency shall be made within [insert number] days after the Contract signature.
	 The advance bank payment guarantee shall be issued for the same amount and in the same currency(ies) as the advance payment. The bank guarantee shall be released when the advance payment has been fully set off.
	Repayment of the advance payment:
	a) <u>Time-based Contract</u> : The advance payment will be set off by applying an amortization rate of <i>[insert twice the percentage of the advance payment, generally 40%]</i> to each installment until the advance payment has been fully set off.
	b) <u>Lump-Sum Contract</u> : The advance payment will be set off <i>[insert</i> "by deducting the entire amount of the advance payment from the first payment" or "by deducting half of the advance payment amount from the first two payments" or specify the advance payment setting off modalities.]
	[Inthe case of a conditional phase, specify whether the amount of the advance payment includes the conditional phase or not. If not, specify whether the advance payment is planned for the conditional phase or not.]
45.1(b): The itemized	The Consultant shall submit to the Client itemized statements at time intervals of
invoices (unit price-time-based)	[e.g. "every quarter",]
45.1(c):	The payment schedule:
The lump-sum Installment payments	As specified in "Payment Terms" in Section 8.

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract
45.1(e):	The accounts are:
	Account name
	Account number
	Name of Bank
	Address of Bank Branch, with contact Tel. No. and email
	IFSC code
	GST registration no.
46.1: Interest on delayed payments	The interest rate is: 4 % per annum.
46.2: Damages	0.5% of the invoice amount against the deliverables per Day for late delivery of each expected Deliverable shall be due by the Consultant as Delay Damages.
49: Dispute resolution	Disputes shall be settled by arbitration in accordance with the following provisions:
resolution	Selection of the Arbitrator: Each dispute submitted by a Party to arbitration shall be heard by a sole arbitrator, in accordance with the following provisions:
	The Parties may agree to appoint a sole arbitrator or, failing agreement on the identity of such sole arbitrator within thirty (30) days after receipt by the other Party of the Proposal of a name for such an appointment by the Party who initiated the proceedings, either Party may apply to the <i>The Indian Council of Arbitration (In case of contract with foreign consultants: Federation Internationale des Ingenieurs-Conseil (FIDIC) of Lausanne, Switzerland)</i> for a list of not fewer than five (5) nominees and, on receipt of such list, the Parties shall alternately strike names therefrom, and the last remaining nominee on the list shall be the sole arbitrator for the matter in dispute. If the last remaining nominee has not been determined in this manner within sixty (60) days of the date of the list, <i>The Indian Council of Arbitration (In case of contract with foreign consultants: FIDIC)</i> shall appoint, upon the request of either Party and from such list or otherwise, a sole arbitrator for the matter in dispute.
	2. Rules of Procedure: Except as otherwise stated herein, arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of procedure for arbitration of the United Nations Commission on International Trade Law (UNCITRAL) as in force on the date of the Contract. For contract with an Indian firm, the arbitration shall be in accordance with Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 (with the latest amendments) of the Government of India, as in force on the date of this Contract.
	3. Nationality and Qualifications of the Arbitrator: The sole arbitrator appointed shall be an internationally recognized legal or technical expert with extensive experience in relation to the matter in dispute and shall not be a national of the Consultant's home country (or of the home country of any of their members or Parties in case of Joint Venture) or of the Client's country. For the purposes of this Clause, "home country" means any of:

Number of GC Clause	Amei	ndments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract
	а) The country of constitution of the Consultant or of any of their members or Parties; or
	b) The country in which the Consultant's or any of their members' or Parties' principal place of business is located; or
	C) The country of nationality of a majority of the Consultant's or of any members' or Parties' shareholders; or
	d) The country of nationality of the Subconsultants concerned, where the dispute involves a subcontract.
	4. <u>N</u>	liscellaneous: In any arbitration proceeding hereunder:
	а) Proceedings shall, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, be held in Jaipur, Rajasthan, India (In case of contract with foreign consultants: Lausanne, Switzerland).
	b) English language shall be the official language for all purposes; and
	С	The decision of the sole arbitrator shall be final and binding and shall be enforceable in any court of competent jurisdiction, and the Parties hereby waive any objections to or claims of immunity in respect of such enforcement.

IV - APPENDICES

APPENDIX A - Terms of Reference

[This Appendix shall include the final Terms of Reference (TORs) (on the basis of Section 7 of the RFP) worked out by the Client and the Consultant during the negotiations; dates for completion of various tasks; location of performance for different tasks; detailed reporting requirements; Client's input, including counterpart personnel assigned by the Client to work on the Consultant's team; specific tasks that require prior approval by the Client.

For time-based Contracts, specify: the hours of work for Key Experts; d time to/from the Client's country; entitlement, if any, to leave pay; public holidays in the Client's country that may affect Consultant's work; etc.]

APPENDIX B - Consultant's technical Proposal including methodology and Key Experts

[Insert the Consultant's technical Proposal and finalized during the Contract's negotiations. Attach the CVs (updated and signed by the respective Key Experts) demonstrating the qualifications of Key Experts.]

APPENDIX D – Form of advancepayment guarantee

[see Sub-ClausesGCC 45.1(a) andSCC 45.1(a)]

Bank guarantee for advance payment

	[Bank's Name, and Address of Issuing Branch or Office]
Beneficiary:	[Name and Address of Client]
Date:	
ADVANCE PAYMENT GUARANTEE No.	:
Venture, same as appears on the signed Contract No [reference null	[name of Consultant or a name of the Joint Contract] (hereinafter called the "Consultant has entered into mber of the Contract] dated with you, for the ief description of Services] (hereinafter called the "Contract").
	ng to the conditions of the Contract, an advance payment in es]()[amount in words]is to be made against
	[name of bank]hereby irrevocably undertake

[Signature] [Note : All italicized text is for indicative purposes only to assist in preparing this form and shall be deleted
This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No. 758.
The maximum amount of this guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amount of the advance payment repaid by the Consultant as indicated in copies of certified monthly statements which shall be presented to us. This guarantee shall expire, at the latest, upon our receipt of the monthly payment certificate indicating that the Consultant has made full repayment of the amount of the advance payment, or on the day of 2 ^2,whichever is earlier. Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at this office on or before that date
It is a condition for any claim and payment under this guarantee to be made that the advance payment referred to above must have been received by the Consultant on their account numberat[name and address of bank].
()[amount in words] ¹ ,upon receipt by us of your first demand in writing accompanied by a written statement stating that the Consultant are in breach of their obligation under the Contract because the Consultant have used the advance payment for purposes other than toward providing the Services under the Contract.

from the final product]

The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the amount of the advance payment and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the advance payment as specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Client.

Insert the expected expiration date. In the event of an extension of the time for completion of the Contract, the Client would need to request an extension of this guarantee from the Guarantor. Such request must be made in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Client might consider adding the following text to the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months][one year], in response to the Client's written request for such extension presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee. Such an extension will be granted only once."